
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




Caledonia Road Transmission Main Upgrade - Project Cost Estimate - March 10, 2020


Amount


Construction Cost  - Based on Tendered Price $5,040,835.00


CBCL Detailed Design and Tender Phase Services $201,803.03


CBCL Construction Phase Services - 28 weeks $303,450.00


Tree Clearing (Separate Contract) $36,750.00


Geotechnical Service (Materials Testing, QA/QC) $60,690.00


Halifax Water - Internal Costs to Date $11,747.42


Sub-Total $5,655,275.45


5% Project Contingency $282,763.77


Halifax Water Engineering/Inspection $40,000.00


Halifax Water Operations/Technical Services $15,000.00


Sub-total $5,993,039.22


Net HST (4.286%) $256,861.66


Overhead/Interest (1%) $59,930.39


Total Estimated Project Cost $6,309,831.27


Total Estimated Project Cost (Rounded) $6,310,000.00


Subtract Approved Funding to Date $120,000.00


Requested Funding (2020/2021) $6,190,000.00


Description


ITEM # 5.2
HRWC Board


March 26, 2020
ATTACHMENT 2








ITEM # 5.2 
  HRWC Board 


March 26, 2020 


 


Page 1 of 3 


 


 


TO: Craig MacMullin, MBA, CPA, CGA, Chair, and Members of the 


Halifax Regional Water Commission Board 


 


 


 


SUBMITTED BY:           


   Jamie Hannam, P. Eng. 


   Director, Engineering & Information Services 


 


APPROVED:                      ______  


   Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D, General Manager 


 


DATE:  March 10, 2020 


 


SUBJECT: Port Wallace Transmission Main - Main Street to Caledonia Road 


 


 


ORIGIN 


 


The Halifax Water 2020/21 Capital Budget. 


 


 


RECOMMENDATION 


 


The Halifax Water Board approve the Port Wallace Transmission Main – Main Street to 


Caledonia Road project construction phase at an estimated cost of $6,190,000 for a total 


estimated cost of $6,310,000.  


 


 


BACKGROUND 


The Port Wallace Transmission Main – Main Street to Caledonia Road project is part of 


the regional plan to twin the existing water transmission main from Main Street to the 


Burnside Industrial Park.   


The Infrastructure Master Plan prepared by GM Blueplan recommended the twinning of 


the Burnside Transmission Main with a new 750mm diameter main.  The new transmission 


main, which will be completed in phases over a number of years, will provide additional 


capacity to the expanding development within Burnside Industrial Park.  This phase of the 


Transmission Main project also provides redundancy and support to the existing Caledonia 


Road Transmission Main and will support planned development in the Port Wallace area.   


  







ITEM # 5.2 
  HRWC Board 


March 26, 2020 
 


Page 2 of 3 


DISCUSSION 


This first phase of the project involves the extension of approximately 1.5 km of new 


750mm diameter main through Halifax Water’s own undeveloped land from the Main 


Street/Brigadoon Road intersection to the intersection of Caledonia Road and Sheiling 


Lane, laid roughly parallel to the existing transmission main along Main Street and 


Caledonia Road. 


In addition to the transmission main, the scope of the project involves the installation of 


new flow meters, and an upgraded Tacoma Drive Pressure Reducing Valve (PRV) 


chamber.   


This phase of the project has been approved for funding as part of the federal/provincial 


New Build Canada Fund. 


The project was recently tendered.  Based on tender results, the estimated total project cost 


of the Port Wallace Transmission Main - Main Street to Caledonia Road project is 


$6,310,000. 


Funding in the amount of $120,000 for detailed design work for this phase was previously 


approved in the 2019/20. 


 


 


BUDGET IMPLICATIONS 


 


Funding in the amount of $6,190,000 including net HST is available within the 2020/2021 


Capital Budget under: 


-  Port Wallace Transmission Main – Main Street to Caledonia Road – ($6,000,000) 


- Tacoma PRV Chamber – ($190,000) 


The proposed expenditure meets the “No Regrets – Unavoidable Needs” approach of the 


2012 Integrated Resource Plan. The proposed work meets the NR-UN criteria of Ensures 


integrity and safety and growth related infrastructure supported by pre-design level master 


plan. 


 


ALTERNATIVES 


 


There are no recommended alternatives. 


 


 


 


 


 







ITEM # 5.2 
HRWC Board 


March 26, 2020 


Page 3 of 3 


Report Prepared By: 


______________________________________________ 


Tom Gorman, P. Eng, Manager Water Infrastructure, 


Engineering & IS Department, 902-490-4176 


Financial Approved By: ______________________________________________ 


Louis de Montburn, CPA, CA, Director, Corporate Services 


902-490-3685 


ATTACHMENT 


1. Sketch of project location


2. Project cost estimate


Original Signed By:





				2020-03-20T12:42:38-0300

		Jamie Hannam





				2020-03-20T10:47:09-0300

		Cathie O'Toole





				2020-03-20T11:52:52-0300

		Louis de Montbrun












ITEM # 5.3 
HRWC Board 


March 26, 2020 
 


 


 
          


TO: Craig MacMullin, MBA, CPA, CGA, Chair, and Members of the 


Halifax Regional Water Commission Board 


 
 


SUBMITTED BY:  


   Jamie Hannam, P. Eng. 


   Director, Engineering & Information Services 


 


 


APPROVED:              


   Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D, General Manager 


 


DATE:   March 3, 2020 


  


SUBJECT:   Hemlock Reservoir Construction 


 


 


ORIGIN 


 


The 2020/21 Capital Budget. 


 


 


RECOMMENDATIONS 


 


The Halifax Water Board approve funding in the amount of $8,160,000 for the construction 


phase of the Hemlock Water Reservoir on Masthead Court in Halifax for a total project 


cost of $8,410,000.  


 


 


BACKGROUND  


Previous water infrastructure master plans identified the need for a water storage reservoir 


to service parts of Bedford including the Bedford West, Bedford South and Birch Cove 


North (Royale Hemlocks) development areas.  


The NSUARB approved Capital Cost Contribution (CCC) charges for the Bedford South 


Water Service District in 1998 (NSUARB-W-HFXR-R-96) and Bedford West Master Plan 


Area and Birch Cove North in 2012 (Decision M04818). The construction of this reservoir 


to service these areas was included in these three CCC charges.  


The Hemlock Reservoir is to be located on a prepared rock pad located adjacent to the 


existing Hemlock Control site on Masthead Court in the Royal Hemlocks development.   







ITEM # 5.3 
HRWC Board 


March 26, 2020 


Report Prepared by:     


Tom Gorman, P. Eng., Manager Water Infrastructure Engineering 


& IS Department, (902) 490-4176 


Financial Review by: 


Louis de Montbrun, CPA, CA 


Director, Corporate Services/CFO, 902-490-3685 


Timing for construction of the reservoir was contingent on the construction of water system 


network on Starboard Drive and significant completion of the overall development activity 


within these areas. These requirements have been met and the reservoir is required now for 


effective water system operation. 


CBCL was retained with approved funds from the 2018/19 capital budget and have 


completed the detailed design. The project was publicly tendered on January 20, 2020 and 


closed on February 27, 2020. Subject to approved funding, the reservoir construction is 


anticipated to start in spring 2020 and be substantially complete in spring 2021.   


The estimated total project cost, based on the tender results is $8,410,000. (Project cost 


estimate attached). With the previous design phase funding of $250,000, the required 


funding for the construction phase is $8,160,000.   


BUDGET IMPLICATIONS 


Funding in the amount of $8,160,000 is available within the 2020/21 Capital Budget under 


Water – Structures - Bedford South (Hemlock) Reservoir CCC.  


The proposed expenditure meets the “No Regrets – Unavoidable Needs” approach of the 


2012 Integrated Resource Plan. The proposed work meets the NR-UN criteria of Ensures 


integrity and safety. 


ATTACHMENTS 


1) Hemlock Reservoir Project Cost Estimate


Original Signed by:





				2020-03-20T12:43:46-0300

		Jamie Hannam





				2020-03-20T10:46:10-0300

		Cathie O'Toole





				2020-03-20T11:54:31-0300

		Louis de Montbrun












Hemlock Reservoir Project Cost Estimate


Amount


Construction Cost  - Landmark Tendered Price $7,048,000.00


CBCL Concept, Detailed Design & Tender Phase Services $118,003.74


CBCL Construction Phase Services $251,081.00


Coating Application & Steel Surface Preparation Inspection - 


Onsite QA/QC $35,500.00


Materials Testing -  QA/QC (Audit) $50,000.00


Air Quality & Noise Monitoring $50,000.00


Halifax Water - Internal Costs $54,000.00


Sub-Total $7,606,584.74


5% Project Contingency $380,329.24


Sub-total $7,986,913.97


Net HST (4.286%) $342,319.13


Overhead/Interest (1%) $79,869.14


Total Estimated Project Cost $8,409,102.25


Total Estimated Project Cost (Rounded) $8,410,000.00


Subtract Approved Funding to Date $250,000.00


Requested Funding (2020/2021) $8,160,000.00


Description


ITEM # 5.3
HRWC Board


March 20, 2020
ATTACHMENT








   
 


 


ITEM # 6 
HRWC Board 


March 26, 2019 


ATTACHMENT 


Corporate Balanced Scorecard  


Organizational Indicators 2019/20 
Target 


2019/20 
Projection 


2020/21 
Target 


High Quality Drinking Water  


1. Adherence with 5 objectives of Water Quality Master 
Plan for all water systems - Percentage of sites 
achieving targets      


 
 


80 - 100/100 


 
 


79 
 


 
 


80 - 100/100 
 


2. Bacteriological tests - Percentage free from Total 
Coliform       


99.3% 
 


99.7% 99.3% 
 


3. Customer satisfaction about water quality - 
Percentage from customer survey    


85% 87% 85% 


Service Excellence 


4. Customer satisfaction with service - Percentage from 
customer survey  


 


90% 


 


93% 


 


90%   


5. Water service outages - Number of connection 
hours/1000 customers       


200 
 


200 
 


200 
 


6. Wastewater service outages – Number of connection 
hours/1000 customers     


8 
 


2 8 


7. Average speed of answer – Percentage of calls 
answered within 20 seconds * Revised in 2019/20.  
Was previously average call wait time.    


60 – 65% 66% 70% 


Responsible Financial Management     


8. Operating expense/revenue ratio percentage 


 


0.815 


 


0.792 


 


0.838 


9. Annual cost per customer connection – Water $517 $498 $522 


10. Annual cost per customer connection – Wastewater $708 $699 $721 


Effective Asset Management 


11. Water leakage control – target leakage allowance of 
160 litres/service connection/day   


 


160-170 


 


160-170 
 


160-170 


12. I&I reduction - Number of inspections to identify 
private property discharge of stormwater into the 
wastewater system   *Note 1 


900 
 


1086 900 


13. Peak flow reduction from wet weather management 
capital projects * New in 2019/20  *Note 2 


34-38 l/sec 
 


N/A 34-38 l/sec 
 


14. Hours of unplanned outages in GIS and Cityworks   95-97% 
 


95-97% 96-98% 
 


15. Capital budget expenditures - Percentage of budget 
spend by end of fiscal year  *Note 3 


80-90% 
approved 


Not available 80-90% 
approved 


Workplace Safety and Security 


16. Average score on internal safety audits *New in 
2019/20  


 


85-95% 
 


93.98% 


 


85-95% 


17. NS Labour and Advanced Education compliance - # of 
Incidents with written compliance orders  


0-2 0 0-2 







~ 2 ~ 
 


 


18. Lost time accidents -Number of accidents resulting in 
lost time per 100 employees  *Note 5 


2.0-3.0 
 


1.6 2.0-3.0 
 


19. Safe driving - Number of traffic Accidents per 
1,000,000 km driven    


4 
 


4.57 4 
 


20. Training - Number of employees trained or re-
certified before due date  


80-90% 
 


80-90% 80-90% 


21. Percentage of completed safety talks  *Note 5 80-90% 60%   80-90% 


Regulatory Compliance 


22. Percentage of public health and environmental 
regulatory infractions resulting in a summary offense 
ticket, ministerial order, or prosecution *Note 6 


 
 


0-2 


 
0 SOTs 


4 Warnings 
7 Directives 


 


 
 


0-2 


23. Percentage of WWTFs complying with NSE approval 
permits   


95-100% 95.1% 95-100% 


Environmental Stewardship   


Number of ICI properties inspected by Pollution 
Prevention each year  


 
500 


 


 
500 


 
500 


24. Energy management kwh/m3 reduction associated 
with capital projects   


3% 
 


3% 3% 


25. Bio-solids residual handling - % of sludge meeting 
bio-solids concentration targets  


92-97% 
 


97% 92-97% 


Motivated and Satisfied Employees   


26. Percentage of grievances resulting in arbitration 


 
0 


 
           2 


 
0 
 


27. Percentage of jobs filled with internal candidates 80% 80% 80% 


28. Employee satisfaction survey result    A- 
 


B+ A- 
 


29. Average number of days absenteeism *Note 7 <7 <7 <7 


Notes: 
1. I&I reduction – Halifax Water is considering changes to this OI based on discussions with a NSUARB 


consultant.  
2. Peak flow reduction from wet weather management capital projects was a new OI in 2019/20.  The 


NSUARB approval of the capital project was delayed in 2019-20 so the project carries forward to 2020/21 


3. Capital budget expenditures - Percentage of budget spend by end of fiscal year - the majority of capital 
project close outs occur at year end.   


4. Lost time accidents -Number of accidents resulting in lost time per 100 employees – Halifax Water is 
considering lower this OI, but is waiting to see what the final year end number will be.  


5. Percentage of completed safety talks  - Not all depots had reported at the end of Q3, so the year end number 
should be a higher % than the current projection.  


6. Percentage of public health and environmental regulatory infractions resulting in a summary offense ticket, 
ministerial order, or prosecution – Halifax Water’s activities have not changed; however, the tools in which 
NSE uses to manage permits and corrective actions has.   


7. Average number of days absenteeism results for 2019/20, and also 2020/21 will be impacted by COVID-19.     








 


ITEM # 6 
   HRWC Board 


March 26, 2020 


 


Page 1 of 4 


 


TO: Craig MacMullin, MBA, CPA, CGA, Chair, and Members of the 


Halifax Regional Water Commission Board 


 


    


SUBMITTED BY: 


    Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D, General Manager 


 


DATE:  March 17, 2020 


 


SUBJECT: Corporate Balanced Scorecard - 2020/21 Program 


 


 


ORIGIN: 


 


Annual Corporate Performance Measurement. 


 


 


RECOMMENDATION: 


 


The Board approve: 
 


1. Corporate Balanced Scorecard targets for the 2020/21 fiscal year as detailed in the 


attached presentation. 


 


2. The Organizational Award Program tied to the outcomes of 12 Organizational 


 Indicators as detailed in the attached presentation. 


 


 


BACKGROUND: 


 


Halifax Water has been utilizing a Corporate Balanced Scorecard (CBS) to measure 


performance since 2001.  At that time, the CBS was viewed to be an excellent framework 


to connect the mission of the utility with the everyday activities of staff.  The CBS 


development was very inclusive in 2001 and followed a process to identify Critical Success 


Factors (CSFs) in support of the mission, establish Organizational Indicators (OIs) to 


measure performance and set targets for continuous improvement.  In March 2002, the 


Board approved an organizational award program tied to eight OIs which were the most 


objective and outward looking.  This program was well received by staff and ensured that 


rewards were linked to strategic outcomes.  With the transfer of wastewater/stormwater 


assets from HRM to Halifax Water on August 1, 2007, a broader mission, vision and CBS 


were developed to ensure it was inclusive of all services provided by the utility.   


 







ITEM # 6 
   HRWC Board 


  March 26, 2019 
 


Page 2 of 4 


DISCUSSION: 


 


The mission of Halifax Water is “to provide world class services to our customers and 


our environment”.  The statement is simple, recognizes the connection between customers 


and the environment with the ”one-water”  mandate, and places the responsibility on 


employees to make Halifax Water a world class utility.   


 


The vision statement for Halifax Water is: 


 


• We will provide our customers with high quality water, wastewater, and 


stormwater services. 


• Through adoption of best practices, we will place the highest value on public 


health, customer service, fiscal responsibility, workplace safety and security, 


asset management, regulatory compliance, and stewardship of the environment. 


• We will fully engage employees through teamwork, innovation, and professional 


development 


 


The vision statement expanded on the values and principles of a world class utility in 


fulfilling its mission and captures the medium to long-term aspirations of Halifax Water.  


With the vision statement developed, staff then selected the critical success factors that 


support the mission, and through an interactive process, settled on the following: 


 


1. High Quality Drinking Water 


2. Service Excellence 


3. Responsible Financial Management 


4. Effective Asset Management 


5. Safety and Security 


6. Regulatory Compliance 


7. Environmental Stewardship 


8. Motivated and Satisfied Employees 


 


There are OIs established for each CSF to enable performance measurement and 


establishment of targets.  Each year, the OIs are reviewed and refined based on operational 


objectives and approved budgets.  In 2019 the OIs associated with safety were updated, 


with the addition of a new lead indicator, average internal safety audit score. 


 


A revised OI Asset Management was implemented in 2019 in recognition that our Wet 


Weather Management Program is at a mature state. Staff are expecting a definitive outcome 


in the reduction of inflow and infiltration to facilitate growth and/or increase the level of 


service to our customers and protect the environment    


 







ITEM # 6 
   HRWC Board 


  March 26, 2019 
 


Page 3 of 4 


Staff recommend the continued inclusion of an OI to track the capital budget spend rate to 


ensure there is focus on optimizing available funding and closing the gap on capital 


investments.   


 


Similar to last year, two indicators related to our annual customer survey positions the 


utility for high performance, namely, customer perception of water quality and service.  


The OIs for these indicators have a range of outcome with the water quality OI target 


pegged at 80 to 85% of customers rating water quality as good or excellent and the service 


OI set at 85 to 90% of customers being satisfied or very satisfied with our service. 


 


The attached Corporate Balance Scorecard Summary identifies the CSFs and OIs for 


2020/21.   


 


Similar to the past process, the most objective OIs have been considered for the 


organizational award program.  Of the 30 OIs detailed in the attachment, 12 are 


recommended for inclusion in the award program.  These 12 OIs are reflective of seven 


CSFs which are critical to our mission and the most objective and outward looking.  Again, 


similar to the previous process, the recognition of an organizational award hinges on a 


minimum score of 7.0 to give a passing grade out of a maximum score of 12.0.  Funds for 


the award program are connected to the operating expense to revenue ratio being below the 


target for the fiscal year.  In this regard, if the operating expense to revenue ratio is met, 


funds are already embedded in the operational budget.  The Operating Expense to Revenue 


ratio OI has been modified this year to reflect a target that incorporates the equivalent of 


$2 million in expense reduction.  


 


It should also be recognized that the targets for these OIs are meant to be stretch goals, 


such that the utility is pushing for both efficiency and effectiveness in its service delivery.  


In many cases, the improvements in efficiency will realize enough savings to pay for the 


award program itself. The water loss control initiative is a prime example of how the utility 


has realized gains in efficiency with financial savings in the order of $650,000 per year.  In 


keeping with the cost containment theme, water and wastewater service cost per connection 


measures under Responsible Financial Management have targets to realize 3% savings 


compared to the approved operations budget. In addition, under the Environmental 


Stewardship theme, the utility is expected to reduce energy consumption (and therefore 


greenhouse gas emissions) as a result of capital improvements.  The continuation of the 


organization award tied to the outcomes of the CBS helps promote a high level of 


performance and will realize future savings for the utility.   


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







ITEM # 6 
   HRWC Board 


  March 26, 2019 
 


Page 4 of 4 


 
 


Report Prepared by:           


 Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D , 902-490-4840 


 


 


Financial Reviewed by:     


 Louis de Montbrun, CPA, CA Director, Corporate Services/CFO 


 Service, 902-490-3572  


BUDGET IMPLICATIONS 


 


Funds for the Award Program are available with the realization of the operating expense 


to revenue ratio below the target amount.  In this regard, funds would be embedded within 


the 2020/21 Operations Budget.  In many cases, meeting the OI targets will realize direct 


savings to the utility, improved operational effectiveness, and/or improved customer 


service.   


 


 


ALTERNATIVES 


 


None recommended. 


 


 


ATTACHMENT 


 


Summary Corporate Balanced Scorecard 


 





				2020-03-20T13:31:05-0300

		Cathie O'Toole





				2020-03-20T13:23:42-0300

		Louis de Montbrun





				2020-03-20T13:31:43-0300

		Cathie O'Toole










		ITEM # 6-I

		HRWC Board

Information Report

March 26, 2020



		







		

		

		







COVID-19:  Q & A for Boards:



In response to COVID- 19, Halifax Water has reviewed the Emergency Management Plan for Pandemic Flu (Section 12R), and the Business Continuity Plan and have activated the preliminary stages.   



1. Do we have an adequate crisis communications plan in place for all stakeholders? 



· Yes.  Our crisis communications are aligned with the Province and HRM.  Our formal plan is to continue to align with these partners and update our communications as required throughout this dynamic situation.  



· Numerous internal communications have been sent to all staff, beginning on Friday March 13.  Various external/media communications (PSAs) have also been sent and posted to our website, Twitter and Facebook.  





· HRM communications and Dr. Gaynor Watson-Creed, with the provincial Medical Officer of Health (MOH) Office are copied on our PSAs.  HRM communications have posted our weblinks as part of their communications updates.  



· This matter was discussed with the Halifax Water Board Executive Committee, who agreed this matter would be added to the March Halifax Water Board agenda, and updates would be provided to the Board weekly and in accordance with Halifax Water’s risk management policy.  



2. Are there “disclosure” requirements that we need to consider? 



· We have advised the NSUARB of the measures we have enacted during this situation.  WE will keep the NSUARB informed of any potential variances from our normal business practices.  The NSUARB has granted Halifax Water an exemption from the requirement to file paper copies of all submissions until further notice.



· Regarding Nova Scotia Environment, Halifax Water will disclose what is required under normal operating procedures for non-compliance with water or wastewater systems.  



· How and when should we be communicating to our advisors, including legal, crisis communications, financial and government relations advisors? Communications have been ongoing with our main stakeholders (i.e., staff, customers, HRM, Provincial Medical Officer of Health, NSUARB).  Further updates will be provided as needed, if and when there is a change in operational status and our ability to provide our essential services that could affect customers.  



3. Do we understand our economic exposure to COVID-19, including the downstream impact? 



· Workers that are self-employed or depending on short-term contracts or freelance work as opposed to permanent jobs will be impacted by this, which may result in an increase in outstanding accounts and/or collection efforts post COVID-19.  As residential customers are only billed on a quarterly basis, the duration of the economic impact on Halifax Water could extend beyond the most acute stages of this situation. 



· Halifax Water anticipates a higher rate of absenteeism, higher level of anxiety, and increased EFAP utilization.  Those factors, combined with safety requirements and business continuity focus on most critical tasks will result in decreased productivity in some work groups. 



4. What is our response plan if our workforce is exposed to COVID-19? 



· Halifax Water has a business continuity plan that was exercised in 2016, that enabled the utility to maintain critical services with a 1/3 staffing level.  Each Director has updated their business continuity plans.  We have implemented more flexibility for staff, where appropriate, such as working from home, flexible working hours, virtual meetings etc. to limit further exposure.  We have also implemented rotating shifts in many of our critical operational facilities. 



5. Have we identified how our key partners and stakeholders may be impacted by this situation? 



· Ensuring supply of necessary chemicals is essential.  Our chemical suppliers understand this priority. Operations of our suppliers could be impacted if they have shortages of staff.  We are in close and regular contact with our suppliers regarding this situation. 



· Internal labour shortages could impact our two unions.  We are communicating and working directly with the two union presidents and will cooperate with them as we navigate any issues.   





· Any shortages of staff within our contractor’s fleet/workforce could delay the timeline of our capital projects.  We are in close and regular contact with our contractors regarding this situation. 

6. Do we have the right business continuity plan for this situation? 



· Halifax Water’s emergency management plan and business continuity plans have been adapted to address COVID-19 and align with provincial and municipal plans.  



7. How do make sure that we are getting timely, verifiable and authoritative information? 



· Halifax Water is relying on reputable sources for information, such as Public Health Canada, the Nova Scotia government and the World Health Organization, as well as industry specific information from our partners and counterparts throughout North America.  Halifax Water’s entire executive team is monitoring for updates that could impact or are relevant to Halifax Water. The General Manager of Halifax Water is in direct and regular contact with the HRM-EMO and HRM CAO.   



8. What are the key metrics for our business that the Board needs from management to make key decisions going forward? 



· The key metrics relevant to this situation are Nova Scotia Environment permit requirements. 

· Reporting to the board will occur as set out in the Halifax Water enterprise risk management process.  



9. What is the right cadence of reporting to the Board during this crisis? 



· The Board Executive Committee has agreed that weekly updates to the Board would be appropriate.  The General Manager will provide a high level summary email on Mondays. 









Page 1 of 3



Page 3 of 3



image1.jpeg










March 20, 2020								





Craig MacMullin, MBA, CPA, CGA, Chair		      					

Halifax Water 								

Halifax, NS



The regular meeting of the Halifax Water Board will be held on Thursday, March 26, 2020 at 9:00 am. In an effort to stem the spread of COVID19, this meeting will take place via teleconference and will not be live-streamed or open to the public.

AGENDA

In Camera Reports

1C	Approval of Minutes of the In-Camera Meeting held on Thursday, January 30, 2020

2C 	Business Arising from Minutes 

	a) 	 

3C	Health & Safety Matter 

4C	Contractual Matter 

		Motion: That the Halifax Water Board approve the recommendation as outlined in the confidential report dated March 19, 2020.





5C	Land Matter  

		Motion: That the Halifax Water Board approve the recommendation as outlined in the confidential report dated March 16, 2020.





6C	Land Matter 

		Motion: That the Halifax Water Board approve the recommendation as outlined in the confidential report dated March 16, 2020.





Regular Reports

1. a)	Ratification of In-Camera Motions

	b) 	Approval of the Order of Business and Approval of Additions and Deletions



2. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting held on Thursday, January 30, 2020



3. Business Arising from Minutes

a) 

Financial

4.1	Operating Results for the Eleven Months Ended February 29, 2020 

4.2		2020 Spring Debenture  

		Motion: That the Halifax Water Board approve 1) the financing of $25,000,000 for a ten year term with a twenty year amortization schedule and an all-inclusive rate not to exceed 5.5%; and 2) approve the financing of $1,700,000 for a ten year term with a ten year amortization schedule and an all-inclusive rate not to exceed 5.5%.





 

Capital Approvals

5.1	Lake Major Dam Replacement – Additional Funding	$ 1.33M

		Motion: That the Halifax Water Board approve $1,330,000 in additional funding for the Lake Major Dam Replacement Project for a total estimated project cost of approximately $9,120,000.





5.2	Port Wallace Water Transmission Main – Main Street to Caledonia Road	$ 6.19M

		Motion: That the Halifax Water Board approve the Port Wallace Transmission Main – Main Street to Caledonia Road project construction phase project at an estimated cost of $6,190,000 for a total estimated cost of $6,310,000.





5.3	Hemlock Reservoir Construction 	$8.16M

		Motion: That the Halifax Water Board approve funding in the amount of $8,160,000 for the construction phase of the Hemlock Water Reservoir on Masthead Court in Halifax for a total project cost of $8,410,000.





		Total:	$15.68M	

Other Business

6.	Corporate Balance Scorecard –2020/21 Program

		Motion: That the Halifax Water Board approve 1) Corporate Balanced Scorecard targets for the 2020/21 fiscal year as detailed in the attached presentation; and 2) The Organizational Award Program tied to the outcomes of 12 Organizational Indicators, as detailed in the attached presentation.





Information Reports

1-I	Financial and Operations Monthly Update 

2-I	Capital Budget Approvals to Date – 2019/20

3-I	Bank Balance 

4-I	Customer Portal, Customer Engagement / Communication Plan for 2020/21 

5-I	Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees’ Pension Plan Financial Report Fourth (4th) Quarter, 2019 (Please Note:  This item is numbered 7-I – this is a numbering error that could not be corrected prior to publication) 

6-I	COVID-19 – HRWC Response to Board 







Original Signed By:

Heidi Schedler

SecretaryPage 2 of 2





		Page 1 of 2



image1.png



image2.png






 


            ITEM# 1-I 
                                                                         Page 1 of 9 


               HRWC Board 


      March 26, 2020     


 


 


TO: Craig MacMullin, MBA, CPA, CGA, Chair, and Members of the Halifax 


Regional Water Commission Board 


 


SUBMITTED BY:  


     
 Louis de Montbrun, CPA, CA, Director, Corporate Services/CFO 


 


     
  Reid Campbell, P.Eng. Director, Water Services 


 


      


    Susheel Arora, M.A.Sc., P.Eng. Director, Wastewater & Stormwater Services 


 


     
   Kenda MacKenzie, P.Eng. Director, Regulatory Services 


    


APPROVED:    


 Cathie O’Toole, MBA, CPA, CGA, ICD.D, General Manager          


 


SUBJECT:  Financial and Operations Information Report 


  


INFORMATION REPORT 


 


ORIGIN:  


 


Regular update. 


 


This report provides a high level overview of financial and operational performance for the utility. 


Financial results are presented first, followed by indicators and statistics for water and wastewater. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  







ITEM# 1-I 
    Page 2 of 9 


   HRWC Board 


March 26, 2020 


 


FINANCIAL 


 


HALIFAX WATER


UNAUDITED FINANCIAL INFORMATION


APRIL 1/19 - FEBRUARY 29/20 (11 MONTHS)


'000


OPERATING REVENUE AND EXPENSES


YTD Actual YTD Budget Prior YTD % of Budget


REVENUE $128,784 $127,171 $126,853 92.83%


EXPENSES $97,292 $105,499 $93,914 84.54%


$31,492 $21,672 $32,939 133.21%


REVENUE BY SERVICE (METERED SALES AND SITE GENERATED FEE)


YTD Actual YTD Budget Prior YTD % of Budget


WATER $44,050 $43,780 $44,036 92.24%


WASTEWATER $64,820 $64,197 $63,978 92.56%


STORMWATER $10,501 $9,338 $9,150 103.09%


OTHER $9,413 $9,856 $9,689 87.55%


$128,784 $127,171 $126,853 92.83%


$0


$10,000


$20,000


$30,000


$40,000


$50,000


$60,000


$70,000


WATER WASTEWATER STORMWATER OTHER


Revenue by Service


YTD Actual


YTD Budget


Prior YTD


$60,000
$65,000
$70,000
$75,000
$80,000
$85,000
$90,000
$95,000


$100,000
$105,000
$110,000
$115,000
$120,000
$125,000
$130,000
$135,000


REVENUE EXPENSES


Operating Revenue and Expenses


YTD Actual


YTD Budget


Prior YTD







ITEM# 1-I 
    Page 3 of 9 


   HRWC Board 


March 26, 2020 


 


  


HALIFAX WATER


UNAUDITED FINANCIAL INFORMATION


APRIL 1/19 - FEBRUARY 29/20 (11 MONTHS)


'000


CORE WATER-WW-SW EXPENSES


YTD Actual YTD Budget Prior YTD


WATER SUPPLY $8,530 $9,931 $8,825 


WATER TRANS & DIST $9,988 $11,152 $9,942 


SW COLLECTION $4,387 $5,307 $4,349 


WW COLLECTION $12,289 $11,693 $11,782 


WW TREATMENT $18,339 $19,731 $18,036 


$53,533 $57,814 $52,934 


OTHER DEPARTMENT EXPENSES (INCL DEP'N)


YTD Actual YTD Budget Prior YTD


ENGINEERING & IS $8,819 $7,864 $7,358 


REGULATORY SERVICE $3,441 $3,741 $2,898 


CUSTOMER SERVICE $4,675 $5,250 $4,462 


ADMIN & GENERAL $5,371 $7,836 $6,256 


DEPRECIATION $21,453 $22,995 $20,006 


$43,759 $47,686 $40,980 


$0


$5,000


$10,000


$15,000


$20,000


$25,000


Core Water-WW-SW Expenses


YTD Actual


YTD Budget


Prior YTD


$0


$5,000


$10,000


$15,000


$20,000


$25,000


Other Department Expenses
(Incl. Dep'n)


YTD Actual


YTD Budget


Prior YTD







ITEM# 1-I 
    Page 4 of 9 


   HRWC Board 


March 26, 2020 


 


 


  


 


 


Regional Water Main Break/Leak Data 


   


Water Accountability 


 


Year 


 


Total Breaks/Leaks 


Current 12 Month Rolling 


Total (up to February 


2020) 


   


Losses per Service Connection/Day 


(International Water Association Standard) 


2017/18 206  


 


  


201 


  


2016/17 216   Period Ending March, 2020 


2015/16 226    


Real Losses: 178 litres 


 


CBS Target:  160  


2014/15 210   


2013/14 213   


Total 1071   


    


Yr. Avg. 214.2   


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


        Average Daily Water Production 







ITEM# 1-I 
    Page 5 of 9 


   HRWC Board 


March 26, 2020 


 


  


 
   


 


 


 


 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


Objective
Total 


Sites


% Sites Achieving 


Target


All Sites: 


90th 


Percentile 


< 15  µg/L


CBSC 


Awarded 


Points


Disinfection 66 97% --- 17


Total Trihalomethanes 25 80% --- 3


Haloacetic Acids 21 100% --- 20


Particle Removal 5 100% --- 20


Corrosion Control 69 --- 4.08 20


Summary Total 80


Water Quality Master Plan Objectives


2019-2020 Q3







ITEM# 1-I 
    Page 6 of 9 


   HRWC Board 


March 26, 2020 


 


     
In this report each facility is assessed using monthly or quarterly averages, depending on the averaging period 


specified in its Approval to Operate. 
 


 


      
 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


CBOD5  


(mg/L)


TSS       


(mg/L)


NSE 


Limit
Avg.


NSE 


Limit
Avg.


NSE 


Limit
Avg.


NSE 


Limit
Avg.


NSE 


Limit
Avg.


NSE 


Limit
Avg.


NSE 


Limit
Avg.


NSE 


Limit
Avg.


Halifax  50 37 40 30 5000 111 6-9 6.9 Continued


Dartmouth  50 48 40 39 5000 785 6-9 6.8 Improved


Herring Cove  50 24 40 19 5000 93 6-9 7.0 Continued


Eastern Passage 25 8 25 6 200 11 6-9 6.9 Continued


Mill Cove 25 13 25 18 200 13 6-9 6.6 Continued


Springfield 20 24 20 31 200 397 6-9 7.2 Declined


Frame 20 4 20 1 200 10 6-9 6.2 Continued


Middle Musq. 20 6 20 4 200 81 6-9 7.2 Continued


Uplands 20 7 20 5 200 13 6-9 7.0 Continued


Aerotech 5 3 5 1 200 10 6-9 7.5
5.7 W 


1.2 S
4.3 0.13 0.09 6.5 9.4 Continued


North Preston 10 4 10 17 200 10 6-9 6.7 3 0.5 1.5 0.4 Continued


Lockview 20 6 20 5 200 10 6.5-9 6.8 8.0 S 1.3 1.2 S 0.2 Continued


Steeves (Wellington) 20 10 20 1 200 10 6.5-9 7.0 14.4 S 0.2 1.0 S 0.1 Continued


BLT 15 7 20 19 200 13 6-9 6.9
5 W          


3 S
3


3 W         


1 S
1 0.02 * 0.10 Improved


Avg. of all Facilities


NOTES & ACRONYMS:


CBOD5 - Carbonaceous 5-Day Biochemical Oxygen Demand  NSE Compliant


TSS - Total Suspended Solids  NSE Non-Compliant


* TRC - Total Residual Chlorine - Maxxam can only measure 0.10 mg/L residual; results of 0.1 mg/L are compliant


BDL - Below Detection Limit


W / S - Winter / Summer compliance limits


NSE requires monthly averages be less than the NSE Compliance Limit for each parameter (Dartmouth, Eastern Passage, Halifax, Herring Cove, Mill Cove)


NSE requires quarterly averages be less than the NSE Compliance Limit for each parameter (Aerotech, Lockview, Mid. Musq., Frame, BLT, Uplands, North


Preston, Steeves, Springfield)


Continued - All parameters remain essentially unchanged since the last report


Improved - One or more parameter(s) became compliant since the last report


Declined - One or more parameters(s) became non-compliant since the last report


LEGEND


9.40.180.41.914 6.9112


-


14


No t acute ly 


le tha l


Trend    Toxicity  


Dissolved 


Oxygen 


(mg/L)


-


-


-


-
No t acute ly 


le tha l


No t acute ly 


le tha l


No t acute ly 


le tha l


-


-


Wastewater Treatment Facility Compliance Summary


Rolling Averages - December 2019, January and February 2020


E. coli    


(counts/  


100mL)


pH
Ammonia 


(mg/L)


Phosphorous      


(mg/L)


TRC        


(mg/L)


-


- -


-


-


-


- -


-


-


-


-


-


- - -


-


-


- -


-


- -


No t acute ly 


le tha l


- -


- -


-


-


-


-


No t acute ly 


le tha l


-


No t acute ly 


le tha l


Wastewater     


Treatment                 


Facility


-


-


-


-


-


-


-


-


-


-


-







ITEM# 1-I 
    Page 7 of 9 


   HRWC Board 


March 26, 2020 


 


 


 


   
    NOTES & ACRONYMS:     CSO - Combined Sewer Overflow           SSO - Sanitary Sewer Overflow 


 


 Rainfall data is from Halifax Water’s rain gauge at the Halifax WWTF.   


 There were nine overflows on days when there was no recorded rainfall, as follows: 


1. January 2: The CSO at Chain Rock PS & CSO was the result of a blockage caused by 


debris. 


 


2. January 3: The CSO at Chain Rock PS & CSO was the result of a blockage caused by 


debris. 


 
3. January 13:  The CSO at Maitland St PS & CSO was the result of a blockage caused by 


debris.  


 


4. January 23: The CSO at Chain Rock PS & CSO was the result of a blockage caused by 


debris. The SSO at Herring Cove PS was the result of a pump inhibit at the HCWWTF due 


to a power failure.  


 


5. January 27: The CSOs at Chain Rock PS & CSO were the result of blockages caused by 


debris. 


 


6. January 28: The CSO at Chain Rock PS & CSO was the result of a blockage caused by 


debris. 


 


 


 


 


 


 







ITEM# 1-I 
    Page 8 of 9 


   HRWC Board 


March 26, 2020 


 


 


 


  


 
 NOTES & ACRONYMS:     CSO - Combined Sewer Overflow           SSO - Sanitary Sewer Overflow 


 


 Rainfall data is from Halifax Water’s rain gauge at the Halifax WWTF.   


 There were seventeen overflows on days when there was no recorded rainfall, as follows: 


1. February 4: The CSOs at Ferguson Rd CSO, Lyle St CSO, Park Ave PS & CSO, King St 


PS & CSO, Old Ferry Rd PS & CSO and Melva St PS & CSO were the result of an 


influent gate closure at the Dartmouth WWTF due to a failed screen. NSE was notified.  


 


2. February 8: The CSOs at Ferguson Rd CSO, Lyle St CSO, Park Ave PS & CSO, Old 


Ferry Rd PS & CSO and Melva St PS & CSO were the result of a pump inhibit at the 


DWWTF due to a power failure. The CSOs at Maitland St PS & CSO were the result of 


blockages caused by debris.  


 


3. February 9: The CSO at Maitland St PS & CSO was the result of a blockage caused by 


debris. 


 


4. February 15: The CSOs at Chain Rock PS & CSO were the result of blockages caused by 


debris. 


 


5. February 22: The CSO at Chain Rock PS & CSO was the result of a blockage caused by 


debris. 


 
  


 


 


   
 







ITEM# 1-I 
    Page 9 of 9 


   HRWC Board 


March 26, 2020 


 


                                                                                 
            


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                         
 


 
  


            
 


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                         


 
 


 





				2020-03-20T09:30:25-0300

		Louis de Montbrun





				2020-03-20T15:05:08-0300

		Reid Campbell





				2020-03-19T21:04:20-0300

		Susheel Arora





				2020-03-19T20:43:23-0300

		Kenda Signature





				2020-03-19T20:01:56-0300

		Cathie O'Toole












ITEM 2-I


HRWC Board


January, 2020


Approved Budget $23,147,000 Approved Budget $22,427,000


Approvals to date $20,350,920 Approvals to date $13,374,038


Total Budget: $77,348,000


Approved Budget $23,336,000 Total To Date: $60,338,784


Approvals to date $18,937,826


Total % 78%


Approved Budget $8,438,000


Approvals to date $7,676,000


Report Approved: Date


Jamie Hannam


CAPITAL BUDGET APPROVALS TO DATE - 2019 -2020


WATER CORPORATE PROJECTS


WASTEWATER 


STORMWATER


$23,147,000 


$20,350,920 


$18,500,000


$19,000,000


$19,500,000


$20,000,000


$20,500,000


$21,000,000


$21,500,000


$22,000,000


$22,500,000


$23,000,000


$23,500,000


Approved Budget Approvals to date


WATER


$0


$5,000,000


$10,000,000


$15,000,000


$20,000,000


$25,000,000


Approved Budget Approvals to date


WASTEWATER


$0


$1,000,000


$2,000,000


$3,000,000


$4,000,000


$5,000,000


$6,000,000


$7,000,000


$8,000,000


Approved Budget Approvals to date


STORMWATER


$0


$5,000,000


$10,000,000


$15,000,000


$20,000,000


$25,000,000


Approved Budget Approvals to date


CORPORATE







Category


Total 


Approved Net Impact on Budget  Approval Date


Water


Collection System


Scotia Drive Duffus Drive Watermain Interconnection $26,000 $0 18-May-19


Culverts/Ditches


Quarry Road Integrated Project - Additional Funding Component Water $193,000 $0 3-Sep-19


Distribution


Automated Flushing Program $20,000 $20,000 18-Mar-19


Coburg Road Bridge Watermain Replacement $40,000 $40,000 3-Sep-19


Hydrants $75,000 $75,000 3-May-19


Lead Service Line Replacement Program $1,000,000 $1,000,000 3-May-19


Service Lines Renewals $100,000 $100,000 3-May-19


Valve Renewal $125,000 $125,000 3-May-19


Water Distribution - Main Renewal Program $1,839,000 $1,839,000 28-Feb-19


Sewer Separation Program Construction of Romans Federal Avenues $1,459,000 $1,459,000


Watermain Renewal Program $2,435,920 $2,435,920 5-Jun-19


Old Sackville Road - Sackville River Crossing Watermain Replacement $65,000 $0


Energy


Bennery Lake WSP  - Tank Insulation Repairs


Bennery Lake WSP  MCC Replacement $150,000 $150,000 3-Sep-19


Lake Major WSP Process Area HVAC Upgrades $60,000 $60,000 3-Dec-19


Equipment


Miscellaneous Equipment Replacement $50,000 $50,000 3-May-19


Lake Major WSP - Purchase New Microscope $20,000 $20,000 6-Nov-19


Facility


Lake Major Dry Polymer Feed System $120,000 $0 1-Aug-19


Lake Major WSP Butterfly Valve Replacement Program $120,000 $0 26-Aug-19


JD Kline WSP Raw Water Pump Station HVAC Controls $75,000 $0


Land


Bennery Lake Watershed Land


Lake Major Watershed - Glasgow Lands


Watershed Land Acquisition


Security


Security Upgrade Program $50,000 $50,000 6-Aug-19


Structures


Dam Safety Review $210,000 $210,000 7-Nov-19


Lake Major Dam Monitoring Program $40,000 $40,000 11-Sep-19


Robie 2 Emergency Pump Meter Installation $21,000 $21,000 1-Apr-19


Transmission


Bedford West CCC - Various Phases


Cogswell Interchange Water Transmission Main Realignments $150,000 $150,000 9-Jul-19


Critical Valve Replacements 2019 $225,000 $225,000 18-Mar-19


Halifax Peninsula Transmission Main Project $398,000 $398,000 27-Sep-19


Lakeside Timberlea CCC


Lucasville Road Transmission Main - Phase 1 $6,647,000 $6,647,000 15-Apr-19


MacIntosh Estates Phase 1 Oversizing $100,000 $100,000 15-Apr-19


Port Wallace Transmission Main - Caledonia Section $120,000 $120,000 27-Mar-19


Treatment Facilities


Aerotech Booster Station Capital Upgrades


Bennery Lake Access Road Upgrade $100,000 $100,000 17-Apr-19


Bennery Lake Filter Influent Valves $64,000 $64,000 18-Mar-19


Bennery Lake Sludge Valve Replacement Program $7,000 $7,000 18-Mar-19


Bennery Lake Surge Anticipator Valve Replacement $20,000 $20,000 18-Mar-19


Chlorine Analyzer Replacement Program $16,000 $16,000 18-Mar-19


JD Kline Back Up Power Supply Study $25,000 $25,000 23-Oct-19


JD Kline Building Envelope Upgrades $100,000 $100,000 17-Sep-19


JD Kline Caustic Tank Liner Replacements $16,000 $16,000 20-Mar-19


JD Kline Effluent Valve Actuator Replacement Program $200,000 $200,000 20-Mar-19


JD Kline Low Lift Pump #3


JD Kline Low Lift Station Crane Renewal $75,000 $75,000 20-Mar-19


JD Kline Low Lift Station Roof Fan Shroud Replacement $21,000 $21,000 20-Mar-19


JD Kline New Alum Chemical Supply $15,000 $15,000 20-Mar-19


JD Kline New Lime Blower System $35,000 $35,000 27-Mar-19


JD Kline Pilot Plant Upgrades $200,000 $200,000 26-Mar-18


JD Kline Pre-Mix Area Mixers Upgrade $90,000 $90,000 8-Apr-19


JD Kline Process Upgrades $250,000 $250,000 26-Nov-19


JD Kline Purchase New Microscope $17,000 $17,000 20-Mar-19


JD Kline Raw Water Intake Traveling Screen Replacement Program $245,000 $245,000 8-Apr-19


JD Kline Raw Water Pump Station Electrical Room Ventilation $50,000 $50,000 16-Sep-19


JD Kline Raw Water Pump Station Window/Wall/Building Envelope $50,000 $50,000 23-Oct-19


JD Kline Replace C02 Feeders $475,000 $475,000 15-Aug-19


JD Kline Replace Floc Tank Valve $35,000 $35,000 20-Mar-19


JD Kline Replace Westinghouse Electrical Panels $8,000 $8,000 20-Mar-19


JD Kline Roof Replacement $270,000 $270,000 1-May-19


HRWC Board Report #2-1


Capital Projects Funding Approvals 2019-2020







Category


Total 


Approved Net Impact on Budget  Approval Date


JD Kline Upgrade the PCL


JD Kline Upgrades to the Process Wastewater Lagoons $150,000 $150,000 20-Mar-19


Lake Major Butterfly Valve Replacement Program $200,000 $200,000 20-Mar-19


Lake Major C02 System Replacement Construction $215,000 $215,000 23-May-19


Lake Major Clarifier Repair


Lake Major Filtration System Replacement


Lake Major Lab Relocation $235,000 $235,000 20-Mar-19


Lake Major Overall Process and Design Study $230,000 $230,000 18-Jun-19


Lake Major Purchase Spectrophotometers $15,000 $15,000 20-Mar-19


Lake Major Replace Contactors in the MCC $34,000 $34,000 20-Mar-19


Lake Major Replace the Lime Feed and Delivery System $120,000 $120,000 27-Mar-19


Miller Lake Small System Public Main Extension Miller Lake Road $495,000 $495,000 12-Apr-19


Purchase and Install TOC Analyzers WSP Facilities $90,000 $90,000 18-Mar-19


Purchase and Install Water Quality Sonde Equipment $70,000 $70,000 20-Mar-19


Reservoir Mixing and Residual Management Upgrade Program $150,000 $150,000 10-Apr-19


Silversands WSP - Electrical/Architectural Upgrades $150,000 $150,000 3-Sep-19


Lake Major Purchase Turbidimeter $18,000 $18,000 20-Mar-19


Lake Major Dry Polymer Feed System Replacement $305,000 $305,000 14-Aug-19


Lake Major WSP - New Alum Tank $155,000 $155,000 3-Dec-19


Peninsula Transmission Main $211,000 $0


Burnside to Bedford Connector Transmission Main - Design Service $90,000 $0


Water Total $21,250,920 $20,350,920 12-Feb-80


Wastewater


Collection System


Bayers Rd Phase 2 - Sewer Separation


Bedford West Collection System CCC $20,000 $20,000 30-May-19


Cogswell Redevelopment Sewer Relocation $170,000 $170,000


Fairview, Clayton Park Bridgeview I/I Reduction $2,500,000 $2,500,000


Integrated Wastewater Projects Program $1,315,000 $1,315,000 28-Feb-19


Lateral Replacements WW (non-tree roots) $1,685,000 $1,685,000 3-May-19


Lateral Replacements WW (tree roots) $526,000 $526,000 3-May-19


Main Street Sewer Main Replacement $100,000 $100,000 19-Feb-19


Manhole Renewals WW $20,000 $20,000 3-May-19


Romans - Federal Avenues Sewer Separation $2,456,000 $2,456,000 16-Oct-19


Sewer Relocation at South Street CN Bridge $25,000 $25,000 15-Apr-19


Wanda Lane Sanitary Sewer Replacement $1,050,000 $1,050,000 5-Jun-19


Wastewater System Trenchless Rehabilitation Program $2,703,026 $2,503,026 22-May-79


Wet Weather Management Program $250,000 $250,000 29-May-19


WRWIP Project Bayers Rd Phase 1 - Sewer Separation


Energy


HHSP - BAS+ HVAC Recommissioning $50,000 $50,000 1-May-19


NSPI Meter Relocations $25,000 $25,000 15-Apr-19


Pump Station HVAC Retro-Commissioning Program $95,000 $50,000 28-Jan-20


Wastewater Pumping Station Performance Testing $250,000 $250,000 0-Jan-00


Cogswell District Energy System - Engineering Consulting Services $150,000 $0 3-Sep-19


Halifax WWTF Flow Splitting Computational Fluid Dynamics (CFD) Analysis $35,000 $0 11-Sep-19


Dartmouth WWTF - New CSA Approved Raw Water Pumps $225,000 $0 11-Sep-19


Equipment


I&I Reduction (SIR) Program Flow Meters and Related Equipment $25,000 $25,000 3-May-19


Miscellaneous Equipment Replacement $120,000 $120,000 3-May-19


Mill Cove WWTF New Yard Tractor $10,000 $0 27-Sep-19


Wastewater CCTV Equipment Replacement $183,000 $183,000 6-Nov-19


Facility


Community Wastewater Treatment Facilities: Personal Monitoring Devices $15,000 $0 20-Jun-19


DWWTF New Air Compressors $55,000 $0 25-Jun-19


Halifax WWTF South Access Gate Rehabilitation $16,000 $0 30-Jul-19


Eastern Passage WWTF Plant Optimization Funding Increase $18,000 $0 17-Oct-19


DWWTF Old Raw Water Pump Rebuild & Storage Container $0 $0 23-Oct-19


Forcemains


Beaver Crescent PS - FM Replacement $500,000 $500,000 23-May-19


Caldwell Road ARV/MH Replacement $75,000 $75,000 28-Feb-19


Security


Security Upgrade Program $200,000 $200,000 6-Aug-19


Structures


Autoport Pleasant Street PS Replacement


CSO Upgrade Program


Duffus PS CSO - Modification $50,000 $50,000 18-Jun-19


Emergency Pumping Station Pump Replacements $250,000 $250,000 31-May-19


Fairfield Holding Tank Rehabilitation $25,000 $25,000 26-Mar-19


Fish Hatchery FM - ARV Chamber Water Proofing $25,000 $25,000 28-Feb-19


Pump Station Elimination - Concept Design $25,000 $25,000 12-Mar-19


Russell Lake PS Upgrade


Upper Water Street PS CSO Replacement


Wastewater Pumping Station Component Replacement Program - Central $250,000 $250,000 1-May-19


Wastewater Pumping Station Component Replacement Program - East $200,000 $200,000 24-Jul-19


Wastewater Pumping Station Component Replacement Program - West $200,000 $200,000 24-Jul-19


Windmill Road PS Replacement


Treatment Facilities







Category


Total 


Approved Net Impact on Budget  Approval Date


Aerotech WWTF Asset Renewal Program $50,000 $50,000 5-Jun-19


Aerotech WWTF Upgrade and Expansion Project Extra Cost $500,000 $500,000 15-Apr-19


Building Cleaning and Corrosion Protection $485,000 $245,000 2-Feb-40


Carbon Media Replacement $21,000 $21,000 5-Feb-20


Dartmouth WW Treatment Facility Coagulant Dosing Pump Replacements $40,000 $40,000 17-Oct-19


Dartmouth WW Treatment Facility Densadeg Flow Meters $119,300 $119,300 0-Jan-00


Dartmouth WW Treatment Facility Duct Work Replacement $25,000 $25,000 8-Apr-19


Easement for Sewer and Access


Eastern Passage WWTF Atlas Copco Blowers Spare VFD $20,000 $20,000 8-Apr-19


Eastern Passage WWTF Drum Thickener Overhaul Spare Parts $15,000 $15,000 8-Apr-19


Eastern Passage WWTF Outfall Inspection and Warning Signage $15,000 $15,000 26-Apr-19


Eastern Passage WWTF Primary Sludge Pumps Spare Parts $15,000 $15,000 8-Apr-19


Eastern Passage WWTF Process Upgrade Program $50,000 $50,000 17-Oct-19


Eastern Passage WWTF RAS Pumps Spare Parts $40,000 $40,000 8-Apr-19


Eastern Passage WWTF Yard Lighting $35,000 $35,000 8-Apr-19


Emergency Wastewater Treatment Facility equipment replacements $335,000 $335,000 16-Sep-19


Grit Pump Replacement $75,000 $75,000 15-Apr-19


Halifax WWTF AHU Coil Replacement $45,000 $45,000 18-Jun-19


Halifax WWTF Duct work Replacement $50,000 $50,000 8-Apr-19


Halifax WWTF New Raw Water Pumps $56,000 $275,000 10-Jun-19


Herring Cove Wastewater Treatment Facility Duct Work Replacement Program $25,000 $25,000 8-Apr-19


HHSP - OCS Wet Scrubber Chlorine Analyzers $125,000 $125,000 29-May-19


HSPs - Outfall Inspection Program $20,000 $20,000 26-Apr-19


Management Plan $60,000 $60,000 17-Oct-19


Mill Cove WW Treatment Facility Digester Mixers Failure Analysis $20,000 $20,000 21-May-19


Mill Cove WW Treatment Facility Lining of Supernatant Pump Croc $50,000 $50,000 21-May-19


Mill Cove WW Treatment Facility New Lab Cabinets and Countertops $69,500 $60,000 18-Apr-19


Mill Cove WW Treatment Facility Process Upgrades - Preliminary & Detailed Design $150,000 $150,000 17-Oct-19


Mill Cove WW Treatment Facility Replace Oxygen Analyzer $75,000 $75,000 21-May-19


Mill Cove WW Treatment Facility South Secondary Clarifier Recoat/Replace Mechanisms $100,000 $100,000 17-Oct-19


Mill Cove WW Treatment Facility South Secondary Splitter Box Rehabilitation $30,000 $30,000 21-May-19


Plant Optimization Audit Program $125,000 $125,000 23-May-19


Springfield Lake and North Preston - Driveway Replacement $15,000 $15,000 23-May-19


Timberlea WWTF Asset Renewal Program $50,000 $50,000 17-Oct-19


Eastern Passage WWTF  Rebuild Centrifuge 801 $50,000 $50,000 8-Apr-19


Dartmouth WWTF Grit Pump replacement $37,500 $0 18-Jun-19


Aerotech BFP LBB Refurbishment $130,000 $0 8-Jul-19


HHSPs - Neutral Grounding Investigation $8,500 $8,500 3-Dec-19


Emergency Pumping Station Pump Replacements - Duffus Street $126,000 $126,000 8-Jan-20


Solar PV Project - Construction and Commissioning $220,000 $0


WW Collections - Wastewater Trenchless Rehabilation Program (155K), WWT Mill Cove


WWTF - Replace Chlorine Analyzer ($31,500), and WW Eastern Passage WWTF Replace Yard lighting) $220,000 $0 17-Dec-19


WWTF Dartmouth WWTF Densadeg Flow Diversion Vanes & CFD Analysis $26,000 $0


Trunk Sewers


Fairview Cove Trunk Sewer $600,000 $600,000 11-Apr-19


Sackville Trunk Sewer - Condition Assessment $155,000 $155,000 2-Jul-19


Wastewater Total $20,370,826 $18,937,826 #############


Stormwater


Collection System


Joe Street Additional Integrated Project $62,000 $0 18-May-19


Pernix Crt Additional Integrated Project $17,000 $0 18-May-19


Athorpe Street Additional Integrated Project $10,000 $0 18-May-19


Forestglen Drive Additional Integrated Project $44,000 $0 18-May-19


Lakeview Drive Additional Integrated Project $31,000 $0 18-May-19


Gottingen Street Additional Integrated Project $43,000 $0 18-May-19


Eastview Drive Additional Integrated Project $15,000 $0 18-May-19


Quaker Cres Additional Integrated Project $23,000 $0 18-May-19


Culverts/Ditches


Bundy Lane near civic 79 $34,000


Coronet Avenue driveway culvert replacement project $100,000 $100,000 30-Jul-19


Driveway Culvert Replacements $812,000 $812,000 8-May-19


Frederick Drive at Dyke Road $37,000


Highway 2, near civic 1380 $200,000 $170,000 25-Jun-19


Lucasville Road Sta 0+910 near civic 1155 $38,000 $38,000 15-Apr-19


Lucasville Road Sta 1+595 at Third Street $38,000 $38,000 15-Apr-19


Lucasville Road Sta 2+695 near civic 758 $38,000 $38,000 15-Apr-19


Lucasville Road Sta 2+850 near civic 749 and 743 $38,000 $38,000 15-Apr-19


Millers Road near civic 1


Murray Road at Caldwell Road


Parkway Drive and Atholea Drive $35,000


Stormwater Survey and Studies Program


Kipawa Crescent - Culvert Replacement Design Phase $31,000 $0 1-Apr-19


Yankeetown Road near civic 16 (project is deferred to next budget year) $88,000 $88,000 15-Apr-19


Kingswood Drive near civic 10 $34,000 $0 30-Jul-19


Kingswood Drive near civic 60 $34,000 $0 30-Jul-19


Sewer Separation Program - Bayers Road Phase II Project - Detailed Engineering Design $75,000 $0 31-Jul-19


Seth Aaron Drive near civic 40 $37,000 $0 30-Jul-19


Dartmoor Crescent Integrated Project Culvert Replacements $134,000 $0 3-Oct-19







Category


Total 


Approved Net Impact on Budget  Approval Date


Sunrise Hill SW IP 19/20 $82,000 $0 1-Oct-19


Pipes


Catchbasin Renewals SW $60,000 $60,000 3-May-19


Celtic Drive Storm Sewer Renewal $120,000 $120,000 22-Feb-19


Cogswell Redevelopment SW Sewer Relocation $300,000 $300,000 12-Jul-19


Drainage Remediation Program Surveys/Studies


Everette Street at Bonnie Brae Drive Drainage Upgrade


Integrated Stormwater Projects $1,200,000 $1,200,000 28-Feb-19


Lakecrest Drive CMP Replacement


Lateral Replacements SW $12,000 $12,000 3-May-19


Manhole Renewals SW $15,000 $15,000 3-May-19


National Disaster Mitigation Program


Stormwater Pipe Condition Inspections (CSP) $100,000 $100,000 15-Apr-19


Wanda Lane Deep Storm Sewer $205,000 $205,000 5-Jun-19


Wanda Lane Storm System Upgrade $210,000 $210,000 5-Jun-19


Structures


Clement St. Berm $82,000 $82,000 1-Oct-19


Ellenvale Run Retaining Wall System Phase 2 $2,220,000 $2,220,000 15-Apr-19


Ellenvale Run Retaining Wall System Phase 3 (Wanda Lane) $1,830,000 $1,830,000 5-Jun-19


Stormwater Total $8,484,000 $7,676,000 30-Jun-79


Corporate


Equipment


Audio/Video Equipment for Online Meetings $12,000 $0


Facility


Building Capital Improvements $98,500 $98,500 19-Sep-19


East/Central Regional Operational Facility


Fleet


Fleet - Stormwater $295,000 $295,000 3-May-19


Fleet - Wastewater $1,180,000 $1,180,000 3-May-19


Fleet - Water $385,000 $385,000 3-May-19


GIS


Engineering Drawing Database


GIS Application Support Program $85,000 $85,000 23-Oct-19


GIS Data Build


GIS Data Project


GIS Hardware/Software Program


Sewer Service Entry


Water Data Base Model


Information Technology


Analytics Decision Support System $225,000 $225,000 23-Sep-19


Approval Forms Framework $415,000 $415,000 9-Apr-39


Computer Maintenance Management System (CMMS) Enhancements $1,000,000 $1,000,000 24-Jun-19


Customer Portal $220,000 $220,000 19-Sep-19


Customer Transactional Site


Data Governance $150,000 $150,000 29-May-19


Desktop Computer Replacement Program $290,000 $290,000 3-May-19


Document/Content Management $100,000 $100,000 12-Dec-19


IT Foundations $200,000 $200,000 1-Nov-19


IT Server Hosting $240,000 $240,000 21-Feb-20


Migrate to Office 365 $250,000 $250,000 9-Dec-19


Mobile Devices and Applications $200,000 $200,000 0-Jan-00


New payroll System $600,000 $600,000 30-Apr-19


Permit Approvals $1,360,000 $770,000 12-Dec-19


Regulatory Reporting $33,000 $33,000 30-Jul-19


SAP S4 Hana Upgrade $348,000 $348,000 15-May-19


Stormwater Billing Support


Telephony $90,000 $90,000 1-Nov-19


Water/Wastewater Data Quality Software Replacement $582,960 $582,960 11-Mar-20


Asset Registry


ERP Solution Project Request for proposal Phase $248,000 $0 24-Jul-19


Regulatory Reporting - Phase 1 Executing $189,578 $189,578 3-Sep-19


SCADA & Other


GPS Units - Replacement $67,000 $67,000 22-Feb-19


Large and New Customer Meters $460,000 $460,000 3-May-19


Meter Deployment $2,600,000 $2,600,000 3-May-19


SCADA Control System Enhancements $100,000 $100,000 21-May-19


Central SCADA System Redesign/Relocation $90,000 $0 18-Mar-19


Treatment Facilities


HHSPs and Eastern Passage WWTF - Building Management System User Interface $100,000 $0


Asset Management


Corporate Flow Monitoring Program $1,760,000 $1,760,000 20-Jun-19





				2020-03-20T12:48:36-0300

		Jamie Hannam












ITEM 3-I


FINANCIAL REPORT - Bank Balance


Consolidated Bank Balance


As Of: March 17, 2020 $59,540,269


Investment Rate of Return:


For month of: February 2020 0.179%


Annual: 2.144%


HRWC Board
March 26, 2020








 


ITEM # 4-I 
  HRWC Board 


March 26, 2020 


Page 1 of 2 


 


 


TO: Craig MacMullin, MBA, CPA, CGA, Chair, and Members of the 


Halifax Regional Water Commission Board 


 


 


SUBMITTED BY:  


   James Campbell, Communications and PR Manager 


 


APPROVED:   


   Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D, General Manager 


 


DATE:  March 4, 2020 


 


SUBJECT: Customer Portal, Customer Engagement / Communication 


Plan for 2020/21 


 


 


INFORMATION REPORT 


 


ORIGIN 


 


Approval of the Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) Project on October 6, 2016 by 


the Nova Scotia Utility and Review Board (NSUARB), as well as changes to Halifax 


Water’s regulations to enable AMI. 


 


 


BACKGROUND 


 


In 2014, Halifax Water began investigating changes, trends and options in metering 


technology that would help enhance customer service and make the utility more 


operationally efficient. The AMI technology selected offered many benefits including the 


ability for customers, should they wish, to manage their consumption, and detect and 


correct leaks before they lead to a high bill. The technology also allows the utility to alert 


customers to high consumption due to possible premise plumbing leaks and thereby reduce 


high bills and billing disputes.  


 


To allow for the customer benefits of AMI to be realized, a Customer Portal would need to 


be developed. The Customer Portal formed a central benefit in the promotion of the AMI 


program.  


 


The Portal is currently in development and will be rolled out in two phases. The first phase, 


which will provide customers with the ability to monitor their consumption online through 







ITEM # 4-I 
  HRWC Board 


March 26, 2020 


 


Page 2 of 2 


a web portal, is anticipated to be in place late fall 2020. The second phase, which allows 


customers to manage their account(s) online (ie. bill payments, account set up/cancellation, 


etc.) is anticipated to be in place early 2021.”   


 


The recent COVID-19 pandemic has introduced some unavoidable uncertainty into the 


schedule. Halifax Water staff resources are being deployed to ensure critical water, 


wastewater and stormwater services are being maintained for our customers. Also, current 


travel restrictions, which are in place for the foreseeable future, make face-to-face meetings 


with vendors unlikely if not impossible. These issues will undoubtedly impact the 


previously developed project schedule. To what extent is not yet known as the length of 


the COVID-19 issue will impact Halifax Water and others is undetermined. 


 


 


DISCUSSION 


 


For customers and the utility to realize the full benefits of AMI, customers need to be aware 


of the Portal, how it will benefit them, and how to set up and access it. Halifax Water 


proposes to use a variety of communications tools to get the message out to customers.  


 


Those options include: 


 


1) Use of local Twitter and Instagram and “influencers” to push out paid 


advertisements across our service area 


2) Use of Halifax Water’s Twitter and Facebook sites 


3) Purchase of Facebook and Twitter advertisements 


4) Advertisements in AllNovaScotia.com 


5) Temporarily replace the “alert” function on Halifax Water’s website with a 


clickable link that will take users directly to the Portal log in/sign up page. The 


“alert” function can be quickly reestablished should the need arise. 


6) Halifax Transit Busboards 


7) The Shed 


8) Fall Water talk 


9) Advertisements in Councilor newsletters 


 


The Customer Portal will be transformation for customers and the utility. Ensuring it is 


utilized to its fullest potential will help maximize the benefits of the AMI project. 


 
 


Report Prepared by:      


  James Campbell, Communications and PR Manager, 902-490-4604  


 





				2020-03-20T16:11:35-0300

		James Campbell





				2020-03-20T16:17:35-0300

		Cathie O'Toole





				2020-03-20T16:12:06-0300

		James Campbell












Page 1 of 10
HALIFAX WATER


UNAUDITED BALANCE SHEET - CONSOLIDATED - NSUARB
AS OF FEBRUARY 29, 2020


February 29, 2020 February 28, 2019
'000 '000


ASSETS


Cash $54,371 $52,611 
Accounts Receivable $39,440 $39,075 
Materials & Supplies $1,637 $2,500 
Prepaid Expenses $175 $512 


$95,623 $94,698 


Regulatory Asset $2,829 $3,021 
Plant in Service $1,236,407 $1,193,347 
Assets Under Construction $87,185 $70,735 


$1,326,421 $1,267,103 


Unamortized Debt Discount & Issue Expense $945 $856 


$1,422,989 $1,362,657


LIABILITIES & CAPITAL


Trade Payables & Accrued Liabilities $22,196 $23,153 
Deposits & Unearned Revenue $1,935 $1,796 
Current Portion of Long Term Debt $19,484 $22,630 


$43,615 $47,579 


Pension & Accrued Retirement Benefits $77,049 $74,632 
RDC, CCC & Special Purpose Reserves $51,269 $37,660 
Long Term Debt $200,591 $185,654 


Total Liabilities $372,524 $345,525 


Capital Surplus, Committed Reserves, & Accumulated OCI $1,038,050 $997,344 
Operating Surplus $15,663 $20,481 
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue over Expenditure - Consolidated ($3,248) ($693)


Total Capital & Surplus $1,050,465 $1,017,132 


$1,422,989 $1,362,657 


ITEM #4.1
HRWC Board


March 26, 2020
ATTACHMENT







Page 2 of 10


HALIFAX WATER


APRIL 1/19 - FEBRUARY 29/20 (11 MONTHS)


ACTUAL APR 1/19 APR 1/19 ACTUAL ACTUAL 
(CURRENT MONTH) (YEAR TO DATE) MAR 31/20 MAR 31/20 YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE


THIS YEAR LAST YEAR THIS YEAR LAST YEAR BUDGET FORECAST  as % of  as % of
'000 '000 DESCRIPTION '000 '000 '000 '000 BUDGET FORECAST


$11,827 $10,447    OPERATING REVENUE $128,784 $126,853 $138,727 $137,963 92.83% 93.35%


$9,036 $8,361    OPERATING EXPENSES $97,292 $93,914 $115,086 $111,240 84.54% 87.46%


   OPERATING SURPLUS BEFORE FINANCIAL
$2,791 $2,086    REVENUE AND EXPENSES $31,492 $32,939 $23,641 $26,723 133.21% 117.85%


   FINANCIAL REVENUE
$43 $98            INVESTMENT INCOME $473 $1,048 $816 $500 57.97% 94.60%
$38 $56            MISCELLANEOUS $609 $689 $553 $578 110.13% 105.36%
$81 $154 $1,082 $1,737 $1,369 $1,078 79.04% 100.37%


   FINANCIAL EXPENSES
$576 $563            LONG TERM DEBT INTEREST $6,542 $6,824 $8,182 $7,109 79.96% 92.02%


$1,548 $1,397            LONG TERM DEBT PRINCIPAL $17,063 $18,970 $19,822 $18,572 86.08% 91.87%
$17 $15            AMORTIZATION DEBT DISCOUNT $170 $184 $202 $187 84.16% 90.91%


$423 $417            DIVIDEND/GRANT IN LIEU OF TAXES $4,655 $4,583 $5,147 $5,079 90.44% 91.65%
$5 $6            MISCELLANEOUS $47 $43 $21 $43 223.81% 109.30%


$2,569 $2,398 $28,477 $30,604 $33,374 $30,990 85.33% 91.89%


   OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT) BEFORE 
$303 ($158)    NON NSUARB ITEMS $4,097 $4,072 ($8,364) ($3,189) 148.98% 228.47%


   NON NSUARB ITEMS
$668 $433      ACCRUED PENSION EXPENSE $7,345 $4,765 $5,668 $8,014 129.59% 91.65%
$668 $433 $7,345 $4,765 $5,668 $8,014 129.59% 91.65%


   OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AVAILABLE
($365) ($591)    FOR CAPITAL EXPENDITURES ($3,248) ($693) ($14,032) ($11,203) 23.15% 28.99%


  


UNAUDITED  INCOME STATEMENT - CONSOLIDATED - NSUARB


ACTUAL







Page 3 of 10
HALIFAX WATER


UNAUDITED BALANCE SHEET - NSUARB
AS OF FEBRUARY 29, 2020


February 29, 2020 February 28, 2019
'000 '000


ASSETS


Cash $54,371 $52,611 


Accounts Receivable
Customers & Contractual $15,799 $15,055 
Customers & Contractual - Unbilled Services $19,830 $18,188 
Halifax Regional Municipality $3,811 $5,832 


$39,440 $39,075 


Materials & Supplies $1,637 $2,500 
Prepaid Expenses $175 $512 


$1,812 $3,012 


Total Current Assets $95,623 $94,698 


Regulatory Asset $2,829 $3,021 
Plant in Service - Water $659,158 $635,230 
Plant in Service - Wastewater $807,898 $761,661 
Plant in Service - Stormwater $271,499 $263,952 


Less: Accumulated Depreciation - Water ($199,021) ($190,519)
         Accumulated Depreciation - Wastewater ($244,185) ($225,102)
         Accumulated Depreciation - Stormwater ($58,942) ($51,875)


$1,239,236 $1,196,368 


Assets Under Construction $87,185 $70,735 
$1,326,421 $1,267,103 


Unamortized Debt Discount & Issue Expense $945 $856 


$1,422,989 $1,362,657


LIABILITIES & CAPITAL


Accounts Payable
Trade Payables $13,092 $14,756 
Interest on Long Term Debt $2,343 $2,409 
Halifax Regional Municipality $6,761 $5,988 


$22,196 $23,153 


Contractor & Customer Deposits $200 $206 
Unearned Revenue $1,735 $1,590 


$1,935 $1,796 


Current Portion of Long Term Debt $19,484 $22,630 


Total Current Liabilities $43,615 $47,579 


Accrued Post-Retirement Benefits $380 $430 
Accrued Pre-Retirement Benefits $1,568 $3,951 
Deferred Pension Liability $75,101 $70,251 


Special Purpose Reserves not allocated to projects $1,540 $1,407 
Regional Development Charge $49,729 $36,253 


Long Term Debt-Water $62,648 $51,714 
Long Term Debt-Wastewater $122,121 $120,977 
Long Term Debt-Stormwater $15,822 $12,963 


Total Liabilities $372,524 $345,525 


Capital Surplus $1,064,488 $1,027,516 
Committed Reserves $2,391 $2,391 
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income ($41,209) ($44,943)
Operating Surplus used to Fund Capital $12,380 $12,380 
Operating Surplus $15,663 $20,481 
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue over Expenditure - Consolidated ($3,248) ($693)


Total Capital & Surplus $1,050,465 $1,017,132 


$1,422,989 $1,362,657 







Page 4 of 10


APR 1/19 APR 1/19 ACTUAL ACTUAL 
MAR 31/20 MAR 31/20 YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE


THIS YEAR LAST YEAR THIS YEAR LAST YEAR BUDGET FORECAST  as % of  as % of
'000 '000 DESCRIPTION '000 '000 '000 '000 BUDGET FORECAST


  OPERATING REVENUE
$3,863 $3,627      METERED SALES - WATER $44,050 $44,036 $47,758 $47,983 92.24% 91.80%
$5,706 $5,226      METERED SALES - WASTEWATER $64,820 $63,978 $70,031 $69,796 92.56% 92.87%
$1,121 $466      STORMWATER SITE GENERATED SERVICE $6,986 $5,635 $6,351 $6,197 110.00% 112.73%


$590 $590      FIRE PROTECTION $6,485 $6,485 $7,074 $7,074 91.67% 91.67%
$320 $320      STORMWATER RIGHT OF WAY SERVICE $3,515 $3,515 $3,835 $3,835 91.66% 91.66%
$138 $150      OTHER SERVICES AND FEES $2,065 $2,439 $2,825 $2,225 73.10% 92.81%
$60 $44      CUSTOMER LATE PAY./COLLECTION FEES $496 $397 $453 $453 109.49% 109.49%
$29 $24      MISCELLANEOUS $367 $368 $400 $400 91.75% 91.75%


$11,827 $10,447 $128,784 $126,853 $138,727 $137,963 92.83% 93.35%
  OPERATING EXPENSES


$728 $643      WATER SUPPLY & TREATMENT $7,328 $7,705 $9,596 $8,725 76.37% 83.99%
$879 $890      TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION $9,123 $9,143 $11,128 $10,633 81.98% 85.80%
$947 $860      WASTEWATER COLLECTION $10,858 $10,461 $10,972 $11,193 98.96% 97.01%


$1,633 $1,567      WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANTS $16,618 $16,390 $19,139 $18,381 86.83% 90.41%
$316 $327      STORMWATER COLLECTION $4,338 $4,304 $5,750 $5,237 75.44% 82.83%
$256 $261      SMALL SYSTEMS AND OTHER SERVICES $2,923 $2,766 $3,622 $3,371 80.70% 86.71%
$224 $193      SCADA, CONTROL & PUMPING $2,345 $2,165 $2,860 $2,856 81.99% 82.11%
$866 $667      ENGINEERING & INFORMATION SERVICES $8,819 $7,358 $8,579 $8,900 102.80% 99.09%
$323 $226      REGULATORY SERVICES $3,441 $2,898 $4,081 $4,218 84.32% 81.58%
$407 $362      CUSTOMER SERVICE $4,675 $4,462 $5,727 $5,717 81.63% 81.77%
$518 $581      ADMINISTRATION & PENSION $5,371 $6,256 $8,548 $7,003 62.83% 76.70%


$1,939 $1,784      DEPRECIATION $21,453 $20,006 $25,084 $25,006 85.52% 85.79%
$9,036 $8,361 $97,292 $93,914 $115,086 $111,240 84.54% 87.46%


  OPERATING SURPLUS BEFORE FINANCIAL
$2,791 $2,086   REVENUE AND EXPENSES $31,492 $32,939 $23,641 $26,723 133.21% 117.85%


  FINANCIAL REVENUE
$43 $98            INVESTMENT INCOME $473 $1,048 $816 $500 57.97% 94.60%
$38 $56            MISCELLANEOUS $609 $689 $553 $578 110.13% 105.36%
$81 $154 $1,082 $1,737 $1,369 $1,078 79.04% 100.37%


  FINANCIAL EXPENSES
$576 $563            LONG TERM DEBT INTEREST $6,542 $6,824 $8,182 $7,109 79.96% 92.02%


$1,548 $1,397            LONG TERM DEBT PRINCIPAL $17,063 $18,970 $19,822 $18,572 86.08% 91.87%
$17 $15            AMORTIZATION DEBT DISCOUNT $170 $184 $202 $187 84.16% 90.91%


$423 $417            DIVIDEND/GRANT IN LIEU OF TAXES $4,655 $4,583 $5,147 $5,079 90.44% 91.65%
$5 $6            MISCELLANEOUS $47 $43 $21 $43 223.81% 109.30%


$2,569 $2,398 $28,477 $30,604 $33,374 $30,990 85.33% 91.89%


  OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT) BEFORE 
$303 ($158)   NON NSUARB ITEMS $4,097 $4,072 ($8,364) ($3,189) 148.98% 228.47%


  NON NSUARB ITEMS
$668 $433      ACCRUED PENSION EXPENSE $7,345 $4,765 $5,668 $8,014 129.59% 91.65%
$668 $433 $7,345 $4,765 $5,668 $8,014 129.59% 91.65%


  OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AVAILABLE
($365) ($591)   FOR CAPITAL EXPENDITURES ($3,248) ($693) ($14,032) ($11,203) 23.15% 28.99%


(CURRENT MONTH) (YEAR TO DATE)


HALIFAX WATER
UNAUDITED INCOME STATEMENT - ALL SERVICES - NSUARB


APRIL 1/19 - FEBRUARY 29/20 (11 MONTHS)


ACTUAL ACTUAL







Page 5 of 10


APR 1/19 APR 1/19 ACTUAL ACTUAL 
MAR 31/20 MAR 31/20 YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE


THIS YEAR LAST YEAR THIS YEAR LAST YEAR BUDGET FORECAST  as % of  as % of
'000 '000 DESCRIPTION '000 '000 '000 '000 BUDGET FORECAST


  OPERATING REVENUE
$3,863 $3,627      METERED SALES $44,050 $44,036 $47,758 $47,983 92.24% 91.80%


$590 $590      FIRE PROTECTION $6,485 $6,485 $7,074 $7,074 91.67% 91.67%
$69 $68      PRIVATE FIRE PROTECTION SERVICES $804 $793 $873 $873 92.10% 92.10%
$10 $8      BULK WATER STATIONS $292 $286 $292 $292 100.00% 100.00%
$21 $22      CUSTOMER LATE PAY./COLLECTION FEES $226 $222 $223 $223 101.35% 101.35%
$10 $11      MISCELLANEOUS $150 $154 $166 $166 90.36% 90.36%


$4,563 $4,326 $52,007 $51,976 $56,386 $56,611 92.23% 91.87%
  OPERATING EXPENSES


$728 $643      WATER SUPPLY & TREATMENT $7,328 $7,705 $9,596 $8,725 76.37% 83.99%
$879 $890      TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION $9,123 $9,143 $11,128 $10,633 81.98% 85.80%
$101 $99      SMALL SYSTEMS (inc. Contract Systems) $1,202 $1,120 $1,237 $1,217 97.17% 98.77%


$83 $70      SCADA, CONTROL & PUMPING $865 $799 $1,037 $1,055 83.41% 81.99%
$348 $294      ENGINEERING & INFORMATION SERVICES $3,716 $3,379 $3,901 $4,071 95.26% 91.28%


$76 $42      REGULATORY SERVICES $778 $610 $1,142 $1,209 68.13% 64.35%
$211 $184      CUSTOMER SERVICE $2,388 $2,274 $2,918 $2,913 81.84% 81.98%
$240 $300      ADMINISTRATION & PENSION $2,740 $3,225 $4,358 $3,572 62.87% 76.71%
$746 $714      DEPRECIATION $8,293 $8,014 $9,955 $9,871 83.30% 84.01%


$3,412 $3,236 $36,433 $36,269 $45,272 $43,266 80.48% 84.21%
  OPERATING SURPLUS BEFORE FINANCIAL


$1,151 $1,090   REVENUE AND EXPENSES $15,574 $15,707 $11,114 $13,345 140.13% 116.70%


  FINANCIAL REVENUE
$19 $44            INVESTMENT INCOME $205 $472 $367 $210 55.86% 97.62%
$29 $48            MISCELLANEOUS $468 $516 $431 $456 108.58% 102.63%
$48 $92 $673 $988 $798 $666 84.34% 101.05%


  FINANCIAL EXPENSES
$155 $140            LONG TERM DEBT INTEREST $1,674 $1,770 $2,239 $1,824 74.77% 91.78%
$391 $353            LONG TERM DEBT PRINCIPAL $4,303 $6,791 $5,165 $4,657 83.31% 92.40%


$6 $5            AMORTIZATION DEBT DISCOUNT $58 $80 $67 $64 86.57% 90.63%
$423 $417            DIVIDEND/GRANT IN LIEU OF TAXES $4,655 $4,583 $5,147 $5,079 90.44% 91.65%


$3 $7            MISCELLANEOUS $21 $24 $11 $18 190.91% 116.67%
$978 $922 $10,711 $13,248 $12,629 $11,642 84.81% 92.00%


   OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT) BEFORE 
$221 $260    NON NSUARB ITEMS $5,536 $3,447 ($717) $2,369 -772.11% 233.69%


   NON NSUARB ITEMS
$340 $220      ACCRUED PENSION EXPENSE $3,739 $2,425 $2,885 $4,079 129.60% 91.66%
$340 $220 $3,739 $2,425 $2,885 $4,079 129.60% 91.66%


  OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AVAILABLE
($119) $40   FOR CAPITAL EXPENDITURES $1,797 $1,022 ($3,602) ($1,710) -49.89% 205.09%


ACTUAL
(CURRENT MONTH)


UNAUDITED INCOME STATEMENT - WATER OPERATIONS - NSUARB
HALIFAX WATER


APRIL 1/19 - FEBRUARY 29/20 (11 MONTHS)


ACTUAL
(YEAR TO DATE)







Page 6 of 10


ACTUAL ACTUAL APR 1/19 APR 1/19 ACTUAL ACTUAL 
(CURRENT MONTH) (YEAR TO DATE) MAR 31/20 MAR 31/20 YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE


THIS YEAR LAST YEAR THIS YEAR LAST YEAR BUDGET FORECAST  as % of  as % of
'000 '000 DESCRIPTION '000 '000 '000 '000 BUDGET FORECAST


  OPERATING REVENUE
$5,706 $5,226      METERED SALES $64,820 $63,978 $70,031 $69,796 92.56% 92.87%


$0 $4      WASTEWATER OVERSTRENGTH AGREEMENTS $14 $70 $50 $30 28.00% 46.67%
$31 $27      LEACHATE CONTRACT $324 $294 $394 $344 82.23% 94.19%


$7 $8      CONTRACT REVENUE $80 $80 $86 $86 93.02% 93.02%
$0 $17      DEWATERING FACILITY/SLUDGE LAGOON $0 $192 $210 $0 0.00% 0.00%
$0 $0      AIRLINE EFFLUENT $77 $80 $160 $100 48.13% 77.00%


$21 $18      SEPTAGE TIPPING FEES $474 $644 $760 $500 62.37% 94.80%
$18 $20      CUSTOMER LATE PAY./COLLECTION FEES $177 $171 $164 $164 107.93% 107.93%
$14 $8      MISCELLANEOUS $131 $130 $139 $139 94.24% 94.24%


$5,797 $5,328 $66,097 $65,639 $71,994 $71,159 91.81% 92.89%
  OPERATING EXPENSES


$947 $860      WASTEWATER COLLECTION $10,858 $10,461 $10,972 $11,193 98.96% 97.01%
$1,633 $1,567      WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANTS $16,618 $16,390 $19,139 $18,381 86.83% 90.41%


$105 $114      SMALL SYSTEMS $1,059 $1,155 $1,323 $1,300 80.05% 81.46%
$23 $23      DEWATERING FACILITY/ SLUDGE MGM'T $378 $208 $636 $478 59.43% 79.08%


$0 $2      BIOSOLIDS TREATMENT $1 $27 $101 $51 0.99% 1.96%
$27 $23      LEACHATE CONTRACT $283 $256 $325 $325 87.08% 87.08%


$136 $119      SCADA, CONTROL & PUMPING $1,431 $1,321 $1,784 $1,761 80.21% 81.26%
$446 $321      ENGINEERING & INFORMATION SERVICES $4,389 $3,415 $3,556 $3,685 123.43% 119.10%
$123 $86      REGULATORY SERVICES $1,308 $1,088 $1,434 $1,508 91.21% 86.74%
$169 $153      CUSTOMER SERVICE $1,967 $1,882 $2,536 $2,532 77.56% 77.69%
$240 $242      ADMINISTRATION & PENSION $2,269 $2,611 $3,608 $2,957 62.89% 76.73%


$1,108 $997      DEPRECIATION $12,216 $11,171 $13,921 $13,981 87.75% 87.38%
$4,957 $4,507 $52,777 $49,985 $59,335 $58,152 88.95% 90.76%


  OPERATING SURPLUS BEFORE FINANCIAL
$840 $821   REVENUE AND EXPENSES $13,320 $15,654 $12,659 $13,007 105.22% 102.41%


  FINANCIAL REVENUE
$16 $44            INVESTMENT INCOME $177 $471 $367 $188 48.23% 94.15%


$9 $8            MISCELLANEOUS $141 $173 $122 $122 115.57% 115.57%
$25 $52 $318 $644 $489 $310 65.03% 102.58%


  FINANCIAL EXPENSES
$369 $377            LONG TERM DEBT INTEREST $4,313 $4,537 $5,133 $4,677 84.02% 92.22%


$1,030 $933            LONG TERM DEBT PRINCIPAL $11,421 $10,977 $12,965 $12,444 88.09% 91.78%
$10 $9            AMORTIZATION DEBT DISCOUNT $100 $94 $113 $110 88.50% 90.91%


$2 ($1)            MISCELLANEOUS $26 $19 $10 $25 260.00% 104.00%
$1,411 $1,318 $15,860 $15,627 $18,221 $17,256 87.04% 91.91%


   OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT) BEFORE 
($546) ($445)    NON NSUARB ITEMS ($2,222) $671 ($5,073) ($3,939) 43.80% 56.41%


   NON NSUARB ITEMS
$282 $183      ACCRUED PENSION EXPENSE $3,096 $2,009 $2,389 $3,378 129.59% 91.65%
$282 $183 $3,096 $2,009 $2,389 $3,378 129.59% 91.65%


  OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AVAILABLE
($828 ) ($628 )   FOR CAPITAL EXPENDITURES ($5,318 ) ($1,338 ) ($7,462 ) ($7,317 ) 71.27% 72.68%


UNAUDITED INCOME STATEMENT - WASTEWATER OPERATIONS - NSUARB
HALIFAX WATER


APRIL 1/19 - FEBRUARY 29/20 (11 MONTHS)







Page 7 of 10


ACTUAL APR 1/19 APR 1/19 ACTUAL ACTUAL 
(CURRENT MONTH) MAR 31/20 MAR 31/20 YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE


THIS YEAR LAST YEAR THIS YEAR LAST YEAR BUDGET FORECAST  as % of  as % of
'000 '000 DESCRIPTION '000 '000 '000 '000 BUDGET FORECAST


  OPERATING REVENUE
$1,121 $466      STORMWATER SITE GENERATED SERVICE $6,986 $5,635 $6,351 $6,197 110.00% 112.73%


$320 $320      STORMWATER RIGHT OF WAY SERVICE $3,515 $3,515 $3,835 $3,835 91.66% 91.66%
$21 $2      CUSTOMER LATE PAY /COLLECTION FEES $93 $4 $66 $66 140.91% 140.91%


$5 $5      MISCELLANEOUS $86 $84 $95 $95 90.53% 90.53%
$1,467 $793 $10,680 $9,238 $10,347 $10,193 103.22% 104.78%


  OPERATING EXPENSES
$316 $327      STORMWATER COLLECTION $4,338 $4,304 $5,750 $5,237 75.44% 82.83%


$5 $4      SCADA, CONTROL & PUMPING $49 $45 $39 $40 125.64% 122.50%
$72 $52      ENGINEERING & INFORMATION SERVICES $714 $564 $1,122 $1,144 63.64% 62.41%


$124 $98      REGULATORY SERVICES $1,355 $1,200 $1,505 $1,501 90.03% 90.27%
$27 $25      CUSTOMER SERVICE $320 $306 $273 $272 117.22% 117.65%
$38 $39      ADMINISTRATION & PENSION $362 $420 $582 $474 62.20% 76.37%
$85 $73      DEPRECIATION $944 $821 $1,208 $1,154 78.15% 81.80%


$667 $618 $8,082 $7,660 $10,479 $9,822 77.13% 82.28%
  OPERATING SURPLUS BEFORE FINANCIAL


$800 $175   REVENUE AND EXPENSES $2,598 $1,578 ($132 ) $371 -1968.18% 700.27%


  FINANCIAL REVENUE
$8 $10            INVESTMENT INCOME $91 $105 $82 $102 110.98% 89.22%
$0 $0            MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 0.00% 0.00%
$8 $10 $91 $105 $82 $102 110.98% 89.22%


  FINANCIAL EXPENSES
$52 $46            LONG TERM DEBT INTEREST $555 $517 $810 $608 68.52% 91.28%


$127 $111            LONG TERM DEBT PRINCIPAL $1,339 $1,202 $1,692 $1,471 79.14% 91.03%
$1 $1            AMORTIZATION DEBT DISCOUNT $12 $10 $22 $13 54.55% 92.31%


$180 $158 $1,906 $1,729 $2,524 $2,092 75.52% 91.11%


   OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT) BEFORE 
$628 $27    NON NSUARB ITEMS $783 ($46) ($2,574) ($1,619) -30.42% 148.36%


   NON NSUARB ITEMS
$46 $30      ACCRUED PENSION EXPENSE $510 $331 $394 $557 129.44% 91.56%
$46 $30 $510 $331 $394 $557 129.44% 91.56%


  OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AVAILABLE
$582 ($3 )   FOR CAPITAL EXPENDITURES $273 ($377 ) ($2,968 ) ($2,176 ) -9.20% 112.55%


(YEAR TO DATE)


HALIFAX WATER
UNAUDITED INCOME STATEMENT - STORMWATER OPERATIONS - NSUARB


APRIL 1/19 - FEBRUARY 29/20 (11 MONTHS)


ACTUAL







Page 8 of 10


ACTUAL
(CURRENT MONTH) ACTUAL APR 1/19 APR 1/19 ACTUAL YEAR TO DATE ACTUAL YEAR TO DATE


THIS YEAR LAST YEAR (YEAR TO DATE) MAR 31/20 MAR 31/20 as % of as % of
'000 '000 DESCRIPTION THIS YEAR LAST YEAR BUDGET FORECAST BUDGET FORECAST


REGULATED ACTIVITIES


  OPERATING REVENUE
$10,690 $9,319         METERED SALES $115,856 $113,649 $124,140 $123,976 93.33% 93.45%


$590 $590         FIRE PROTECTION $6,485 $6,485 $7,074 $7,074 91.67% 91.67%
$69 $68         PRIVATE FIRE PROTECTION $804 $793 $873 $873 92.10% 92.10%


$320 $320         STORMWATER SERVICE $3,515 $3,515 $3,835 $3,835 91.66% 91.66%
$96 $77         OTHER OPERATING REVENUE $1,134 $1,086 $1,157 $1,137 98.01% 99.74%


$11,765 $10,374 $127,794 $125,528 $137,079 $136,895 93.23% 93.35%
  OPERATING EXPENSES


$728 $643         WATER SUPPLY & TREATMENT $7,328 $7,705 $9,596 $8,725 76.37% 83.99%
$879 $890         TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION $9,123 $9,143 $11,128 $10,633 81.98% 85.80%


$1,262 $1,187         WASTEWATER & STORMWATER COLLECTION $15,173 $14,737 $16,604 $16,312 91.38% 93.02%
$1,633 $1,567         WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANTS $16,618 $16,390 $19,139 $18,381 86.83% 90.41%


$190 $212         SMALL SYSTEMS $2,233 $2,256 $2,534 $2,491 88.12% 89.64%
$224 $193         SCADA, CONTROL & PUMPING $2,345 $2,165 $2,860 $2,856 81.99% 82.11%
$866 $667         ENGINEERING & INFORMATION SERVICES $8,819 $7,358 $8,579 $8,900 102.80% 99.09%
$323 $226         REGULATORY SERVICES $3,441 $2,898 $4,081 $4,218 84.32% 81.58%
$404 $359         CUSTOMER SERVICE $4,639 $4,429 $5,687 $5,677 81.57% 81.72%


$1,186 $1,007         ADMINISTRATION & PENSION $12,679 $10,984 $14,195 $14,996 89.32% 84.55%
$1,938 $1,783         DEPRECIATION $21,437 $19,990 $25,049 $24,971 85.58% 85.85%
$9,633 $8,734 $103,835 $98,055 $119,452 $118,160 86.93% 87.88%


  FINANCIAL REVENUE
$43 $98            INVESTMENT INCOME $473 $1,048 $816 $500 57.97% 94.60%


$0 $24            MISCELLANEOUS $143 $211 $110 $135 130.00% 105.93%
$43 $122 $616 $1,259 $926 $635 66.52% 97.01%


  FINANCIAL EXPENSES
$576 $563            LONG TERM DEBT INTEREST $6,542 $6,824 $8,182 $7,109 79.96% 92.02%


$1,548 $1,397            LONG TERM DEBT PRINCIPAL $17,063 $18,970 $19,822 $18,572 86.08% 91.87%
$17 $15            AMORTIZATION DEBT DISCOUNT $170 $184 $202 $187 84.16% 90.91%


$423 $417            DIVIDEND/GRANT IN LIEU OF TAXES $4,655 $4,583 $5,147 $5,079 90.44% 91.65%
$2,564 $2,392 $28,430 $30,561 $33,353 $30,947 85.24% 91.87%


  OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AVAILABLE
($389 ) ($630 )   FOR CAPITAL EXPENDITURES ($3,855 ) ($1,829 ) ($14,800 ) ($11,577 ) 26.05% 33.30%


UNREGULATED ACTIVITIES


  OPERATING REVENUE
$21 $18         SEPTAGE TIPPING FEES $474 $644 $760 $500 62.37% 94.80%
$31 $27         LEACHATE CONTRACT $324 $294 $394 $344 82.23% 94.19%


$7 $8         CONTRACT REVENUE $80 $80 $86 $86 93.02% 93.02%
$0 $17         DEWATERING $0 $192 $210 $0 0.00% 0.00%
$0 $0         AIRLINE EFFLUENT $77 $80 $160 $100 48.13% 77.00%


$13 $13         ENERGY PROJECTS $147 $145 $168 $168 87.50% 87.50%
$3 $3         MISCELLANEOUS $35 $35 $38 $38 92.11% 92.11%


$75 $86 $1,137 $1,470 $1,816 $1,236 62.61% 91.99%
  OPERATING EXPENSES


$16 $1         WATER SUPPLY & TREATMENT $28 $19 $26 $26 107.69% 107.69%
$51 $48         WASTEWATER TREATMENT $685 $519 $1,180 $972 58.05% 70.47%


$3 $10         SPONSORSHIPS & DONATIONS $73 $70 $61 $61 119.67% 119.67%
$1 $1         DEPRECIATION $16 $16 $35 $35 45.71% 45.71%


$71 $60 $802 $624 $1,302 $1,094 61.60% 73.31%
  FINANCIAL REVENUE


$25 $19            MISCELLANEOUS $319 $333 $275 $275 116.00% 116.00%
$25 $19 $319 $333 $275 $275 116.00% 116.00%


  FINANCIAL EXPENSES
$5 $6            MISCELLANEOUS $47 $43 $21 $43 223.81% 109.30%
$5 $6 $47 $43 $21 $43 223.81% 109.30%


  OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AVAILABLE
$24 $39   FOR CAPITAL EXPENDITURES $607 $1,136 $768 $374 79.04% 162.30%


  OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)
  AVAILABLE FOR CAPITAL EXPENDITURES


($365 ) ($591 )   (REGULATED AND UNREGULATED) ($3,248 ) ($693 ) ($14,032 ) ($11,203 ) 23.15% 28.99%


HALIFAX WATER
UNAUDITED INCOME STATEMENT - REGULATED AND UNREGULATED OPERATIONS - NSUARB


APRIL 1/19 - FEBRUARY 29/20 (11 MONTHS)







Page 9 of 10
HALIFAX WATER


UNAUDITED BALANCE SHEET - IFRS
AS OF FEBRUARY 29, 2020


February 29, 2020 February 28, 2019
'000 '000


ASSETS


Cash $54,371 $52,611 


Accounts Receivable
Customers & Contractual $15,799 $15,055 
Customers & Contractual - Unbilled Services $19,830 $18,188 
Halifax Regional Municipality $3,811 $5,832 


$39,440 $39,075 


Materials & Supplies $1,637 $2,500 
Prepaid Expenses $175 $512 


$1,812 $3,012 


Total Current Assets $95,623 $94,698 


Regulatory Asset $2,829 $3,021 
Plant in Service - Water $659,158 $635,230 
Plant in Service - Wastewater $807,898 $761,661 
Plant in Service - Stormwater $271,499 $263,952 


Less: Accumulated Depreciation - Water ($213,236) ($200,966)
         Accumulated Depreciation - Wastewater ($259,013) ($235,758)
         Accumulated Depreciation - Stormwater ($59,004) ($51,870)


$1,210,131 $1,175,270 


Assets Under Construction $87,185 $70,735 
$1,297,316 $1,246,005 


Unamortized Debt Discount & Issue Expense $945 $856 


$1,393,884 $1,341,559


LIABILITIES


Accounts Payable
Trade Payables $13,092 $14,756 
Interest on Long Term Debt $2,343 $2,409 
Halifax Regional Municipality $6,761 $5,988 


$22,196 $23,153 


Contractor & Customer Deposits $200 $206 
Unearned Revenue $1,735 $1,590 


$1,935 $1,796 


Current Portion of Deferred Contributed Capital $13,846 $13,405 
Current Portion of Long Term Debt $19,484 $22,630 


$33,330 $36,035 


Total Current Liabilities $57,461 $60,984 


Accrued Post-Retirement Benefits $380 $430 
Accrued Pre-Retirement Benefit $1,568 $3,951 
Deferred Pension Liability $75,101 $70,251 


Deferred Contributed Capital $863,386 $839,599 


Long Term Debt-Water $62,648 $51,714 
Long Term Debt-Wastewater $122,121 $120,977 
Long Term Debt-Stormwater $15,822 $12,963 


Total Liabilities $1,198,487 $1,160,869 


EQUITY
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income ($41,209) ($44,943)
Accumulated Surplus $225,007 $212,604 
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue over Expenditure $11,599 $13,029 


Total Equity $195,397 $180,690 


$1,393,884 $1,341,559 







Page 10 of 10


APR 1/19 APR 1/19 ACTUAL ACTUAL 
MAR 31/20 MAR 31/20 YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE


THIS YEAR LAST YEAR THIS YEAR LAST YEAR BUDGET FORECAST  as % of  as % of
'000 '000 DESCRIPTION '000 '000 '000 '000 BUDGET FORECAST


  OPERATING REVENUE
$3,863 $3,627      METERED SALES - WATER $44,050 $44,036 $47,758 $47,983 92.24% 91.80%
$5,706 $5,226      METERED SALES - WASTEWATER $64,820 $63,978 $70,031 $69,796 92.56% 92.87%
$1,121 $466      STORMWATER SITE GENERATED SERVICE $6,986 $5,635 $6,351 $6,197 110.00% 112.73%


$590 $590      FIRE PROTECTION $6,485 $6,485 $7,074 $7,074 91.67% 91.67%
$320 $320      STORMWATER RIGHT OF WAY SERVICE $3,515 $3,515 $3,835 $3,835 91.66% 91.66%
$138 $150      OTHER SERVICES AND FEES $2,065 $2,439 $2,825 $2,225 73.10% 92.81%


$60 $44      CUSTOMER LATE PAY./COLLECTION FEES $496 $397 $453 $453 109.49% 109.49%
$29 $24      MISCELLANEOUS $367 $368 $400 $400 91.75% 91.75%


$11,827 $10,447 $128,784 $126,853 $138,727 $137,963 92.83% 93.35%
  OPERATING EXPENSES


$728 $643      WATER SUPPLY & TREATMENT $7,328 $7,705 $9,596 $8,725 76.37% 83.99%
$879 $890      TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION $9,123 $9,143 $11,128 $10,633 81.98% 85.80%
$947 $860      WASTEWATER COLLECTION $10,858 $10,461 $10,972 $11,193 98.96% 97.01%


$1,633 $1,567      WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANTS $16,618 $16,390 $19,139 $18,381 86.83% 90.41%
$316 $327      STORMWATER COLLECTION $4,338 $4,304 $5,750 $5,237 75.44% 82.83%
$256 $261      SMALL SYSTEMS AND OTHER SERVICES $2,923 $2,766 $3,622 $3,371 80.70% 86.71%
$224 $193      SCADA, CONTROL & PUMPING $2,345 $2,165 $2,860 $2,856 81.99% 82.11%
$866 $667      ENGINEERING & INFORMATION SERVICES $8,819 $7,358 $8,579 $8,900 102.80% 99.09%
$323 $226      REGULATORY SERVICES $3,441 $2,898 $4,081 $4,218 84.32% 81.58%
$407 $362      CUSTOMER SERVICE $4,675 $4,462 $5,727 $5,717 81.63% 81.77%


$1,186 $1,014      ADMINISTRATION & PENSION $12,716 $11,021 $14,216 $15,017 89.45% 84.68%
$3,638 $3,827      DEPRECIATION $40,339 $42,636 $25,085 $37,610 160.81% 107.26%


$11,403 $10,837 $123,523 $121,309 $120,755 $131,858 102.29% 93.68%


  OPERATING SURPLUS BEFORE FINANCIAL
$424 ($390)   REVENUE AND EXPENSES $5,261 $5,544 $17,972 $6,105 29.27% 86.18%


  FINANCIAL REVENUE
$43 $98            INVESTMENT INCOME $473 $1,048 $816 $500 57.97% 94.60%


$1,531 $1,613            MISCELLANEOUS $17,216 $17,871 $553 $13,078 3113.20% 131.64%
$1,574 $1,711 $17,689 $18,919 $1,369 $13,578 1292.11% 130.28%


  FINANCIAL EXPENSES
$576 $563            LONG TERM DEBT INTEREST $6,542 $6,824 $8,182 $7,109 79.96% 92.02%


$17 $15            AMORTIZATION DEBT DISCOUNT $170 $184 $202 $187 84.16% 90.91%
$423 $417            DIVIDEND/GRANT IN LIEU OF TAXES $4,655 $4,583 $5,147 $5,079 90.44% 91.65%


$5 $6            MISCELLANEOUS ($16) ($157) $15 $15 -106.67% -106.67%
$1,021 $1,001 $11,351 $11,434 $13,546 $12,390 83.80% 91.61%


$977 $320   SURPLUS (DEFICIT) $11,599 $13,029 $5,795 $7,293 200.16% 159.04%


(CURRENT MONTH) (YEAR TO DATE)


HALIFAX WATER
UNAUDITED INCOME STATEMENT - ALL SERVICES - IFRS


APRIL 1/19 - FEBRUARY 29/20 (11 MONTHS)


ACTUAL ACTUAL












   ITEM # 4.1 
  HRWC Board 


March 26, 2020 
 


 


Page 1 of 8 


 


TO: Craig MacMullin, MBA, CPA, CGA, Chair and Members of the Halifax 


Regional Water Commission Board 
 


 


SUBMITTED BY:   


Louis de Montbrun, CPA, CA  


Director, Corporate Services/CFO 
 


 


APPROVED:   


   Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D 


General Manager 


 


DATE:  March 18, 2020 


 


SUBJECT: Operating Results for the Eleven Months Ended February 29, 2020 


 


 


INFORMATION REPORT 
 


ORIGIN 


 


Financial Statements 


 


 


BACKGROUND 


 


The Board is required to review periodic financial information throughout the year. 


 


 


DISCUSSION 


 


Attached are the operating results for eleven (11) months of the 2019/20 fiscal year, period ending 


February 29, 2020.  The statements reflect direct operating costs by department and allocations 


among water, wastewater and stormwater for common costs shared across all the services provided 


by Halifax Regional Water Commission (Halifax Water).   


 


Halifax Water is a fully regulated government business enterprise, falling under the jurisdiction of 


the Nova Scotia Utility and Review Board (NSUARB).  The NSUARB requires that Halifax Water 


file Financial Statements and rate applications with the Board based on the NSUARB Handbook 


for Accounting and Reporting for Water Utilities.  The Accounting Standards Board (AcSB) 


requires rate regulated entities to conform to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). 







ITEM # 4.1 
  HRWC Board 


March 26, 2020 
 


 


Page 2 of 8 


The Commission maintains the financial records in IFRS for the purposes of the annual audit and 


consolidation of the financial statements with those of Halifax Regional Municipality (HRM).   


The budget for the 2019/20 fiscal year was prepared using the NSUARB format and financial 


results continue to be provided in NSUARB format. 


 


Summary information in NSUARB format is provided for the Balance Sheet on Page 1 and the 


Income Statement on Page 2.  A detailed presentation of the Balance Sheet and Income Statement 


is provided on Pages 3 and 4.  Pages 5 through 8 provide Income Statements by Service and for 


Regulated and Un-Regulated Services.  Pages 9 and 10 provide the Balance Sheet and Income 


Statement in IFRS format. 


 


Consolidated Income Statement - Page 2 of attachment 


 


 


 


Key items of note: 


 Operating revenue to date of $128.8 million is $1.9 million higher than the prior year.  


 Operating expenses to date of $97.3 million are $3.4 million higher than the prior year.   


 The Net Surplus, before Accrued Pension Expense, for the year to date is $4.1 million. 


 The Net Deficit, after Accrued Pension Expense, for the year to date is a loss of $3.2 


million, an increase in the loss of $2.6 million from the prior year.  


 


The approved Net Deficit after Accrued Pension Expense was $14.0 million for the full fiscal year. 


The approved Net Deficit before Accrued Pension Expense was $8.4 million. (See page 2 of the 


attachment). 


 


The forecasted Net Deficit before Accrued Pension Expense is $11.2 million for the full fiscal 


year. This is an improvement of $2.8 million from the approved Budget. (See page 2 of the 


attachment). 


 Cumulative changes to the forecast include: 


o A reduction in Operating Revenue of $0.8 million, as a result of lower revenue for 


several unregulated activities; 


Actual YTD Prior YTD


2019/20 2018/19


'000 '000 $ Change % Change


Operating Revenue $128,784 $126,853 $1,931 1.5%


Operating Expenses $97,292 $93,914 $3,378 3.6%


Operating Surplus (Deficit) $31,492 $32,939 ($1,447) (4.4%)


Financial Revenue $1,082 $1,737 ($655) (37.7%)


Financial Expenses $28,477 $30,604 ($2,127) (7.0%)


Net Surplus before Pension $4,097 $4,072 $25 0.6%


Accrued Pension Expense $7,345 $4,765 $2,580 54.1%


Net Surplus (Deficit) ($3,248) ($693) $2,605 (375.9%)


Summarized Consolidated Operating Results







ITEM # 4.1 
  HRWC Board 


March 26, 2020 
 


 


Page 3 of 8 


o A reduction in Financial Revenue of $0.3 million, as a result of lower investment 


income; 


o A reduction in Operating Expenses of $3.8 million from lower expected costs in 


several departments; 


o A reduction in debt servicing costs of $2.3 million; 


o The forecast for the Accrued Pension Expense increased by $2.3 million.  This is 


an accrued expense and does not influence the rate regulated activities. 


 


Balance Sheet - Page 3 of attachment 


 


Key indicators and balances from the Balance Sheet are provided on the following tables (figures 


shown are in thousands): 


 


   
 


 Cash balance includes funds held in bank accounts reduced by outstanding cheques. It has 


increased $1.7 million from the prior year largely in part due to a final debt repayment in 


January 2019.  


 


   
 


 Customer Receivables have increased $0.7 million from the prior year. The increase is 


largely a result of annual stormwater account invoicing commencing earlier than the prior 


year. There are also large current receivables from developers for CCCs in West Bedford.  


 Unbilled Services have increased $1.6 million from the prior year due to the timing of 


billing cycles and higher consumption.  


 HRM receivables have decreased $2.0 million due to the timing of the Stormwater Right-


of-Way payment occurring in February instead of March as in the prior year. 


 Trade Payables have decreased $1.6 million as there were several large progress claim 


payments outstanding in the prior year.  


 HRM payables are higher by $0.7 million due to the timing of the Stormwater Right-of-


Way payments to be remitted to HRM.   


 


 


2019/20 2018/19


Cash $54,371 $52,611


Cash


2019/20 2018/19


Current Assets $95,623 $94,698


Current Liabilities $43,615 $47,579


Current Ratio 2.19             1.99                


Balance Sheet Liquidity (Current Ratio)


2019/20 2018/19


Customer Receivables $15,799 $15,055


Unbilled Services $19,830 $18,188


Halifax Regional Municipality $3,811 $5,832


Total $39,440 $39,075


Accounts Receivable


2019/20 2018/19


Trade Payables $13,092 $14,756


LT Debt Interest $2,343 $2,409


Halifax Regional Municipality $6,761 $5,988


Total $22,196 $23,153


Accounts Payable







ITEM # 4.1 
  HRWC Board 


March 26, 2020 
 


 


Page 4 of 8 


   
 


 Total Capital Expenditures as of February 29, 2020 are $87.2 million.  By the end of the 


fiscal year it is expected that over $90 million in capital projects will be completed and 


capitalized including AMI, JD Kline, Lake Major Dam, and Lucasville Transmission Main 


Replacement. 


 


  
 


 Long Term Debt increased $14.9 million as new debt acquired was greater than the prior 


year. New debt of $30 million was received in November 2019.  For the full fiscal year, 


Long Term Debt will be up $17.0 million after declining for the past three years. 


 


 
 


 The debt servicing ratio for Water of 11.6% is substantially lower than the prior year 


because the prior year includes the final, large repayment for the original Lake Major debt. 


 The debt servicing ratio of 18.5% is well below the maximum 35% ratio allowed under the 


blanket guarantee agreement with HRM.  


  


Cumulative


AMI - Advanced Metering Infrastructure $16,696


JD Kline Filtration Replacement $8,376


Lake Major Dam Replacement $8,862


Lucasville Transmission Main Replacement $5,724


All other projects $56,019


Total Capital Expenditures $95,677


External Funding Received ($8,492)


Net Assets Under Construction $87,185


Capital Assets Under Construction


2019/20 2018/19


Water $67,585 $61,197


Wastewater $135,657 $133,443


Stormwater $16,833 $13,644


Combined $220,075 $208,284


Total Debt by Service (including current portion)


2019/20 2018/19


New Debt $30,000 $15,000


Debt repayments ($18,209) ($21,130)


Change in Debt $11,791 ($6,130)


Net change in Long Term Debt (full fiscal year)


YTD Debt Servicing Cost Ratio


2019/20 2018/19


Water 11.6% 16.6%


Wastewater 24.0% 23.8%


Stormwater 17.8% 18.7%


Combined 18.5% 20.5%


Debt Servicing Ratio by Service







ITEM # 4.1 
  HRWC Board 


March 26, 2020 
 


 


Page 5 of 8 


 
 


 Cumulative Operating Surplus, after Accrued Pension Expense, for the eleven-months 


ended February 29, 2020 is lower than the prior year due to there being a larger projected 


deficit in 2019/20 and a decrease in the opening operating surplus for April 1, 2019 related 


to the March 2019 deficit.  


 


Income Statement – All Services - Page 4 of attachment 


 


The following tables compare the actual results for the year to date with the prior year actual results 


and forecasts for the year.   


 


  
 


 The year to date surplus of $4.1 million is on par with the prior year, with the increase in 


revenues being offset with an increase in expenses.  The surplus is $7.0 million greater than 


the pro-rated forecast for the year. The following is a discussion on factors influencing the 


variances. 


 


Operating Revenue 


 


  
 


YTD YTD


2019/20 2018/19


Opening Operating Surplus $15,663 $20,481


Year to Date Suplus/(Deficit) ($3,248) ($693)


Cumulative Operating Surplus $12,415 $19,788


Operating Surplus


Actual YTD Prior YTD


2019/20 2018/19


'000 '000 $ Variance


Operating Revenue $128,784 $126,853 $1,931


Operating Expenses $97,292 $93,914 $3,378


Operating Surplus (Deficit) $31,492 $32,939 ($1,447)


Financial Revenue $1,082 $1,737 ($655)


Financial Expenses $28,477 $30,604 ($2,127)


Surplus (Deficit) $4,097 $4,072 $25


Summarized Consolidated Operating Results


Actual YTD Forecast YTD


2019/20 2019/20


'000 '000 $ Variance


Operating Revenue $128,784 $126,471 $2,313


Operating Expenses $97,292 $101,974 ($4,682)


Operating Surplus (Deficit) $31,492 $24,497 $6,995


Financial Revenue $1,082 $988 $94


Financial Expenses $28,477 $28,409 $68


Surplus (Deficit) $4,097 ($2,924) $7,021


Summarized Consolidated Operating Results


Actual YTD Prior YTD


2019/20 2018/19


'000 '000 $ Variance


Consumption Revenue $84,526 $84,184 $342


Base Charge Revenue $25,118 $25,057 $61


Wastewater Rebate ($774) ($1,227) $453


Metered Sales Sub-total $108,870 $108,014 $856


SW Site Generated Charge $6,986 $5,635 $1,351


HRM Fire Protection &


   Right of Way $10,000 $10,000 $0


Other Operating Revenue $2,928 $3,204 ($276)


Operating Revenue Total $128,784 $126,853 $1,931


Operating Revenue Results


Actual YTD Forecast YTD


2019/20 2019/20


'000 '000 $ Variance


Consumption Revenue $84,526 $83,905 $621


Base Charge Revenue $25,118 $25,109 $9


Wastewater Rebate ($774) ($1,047) $273


Metered Sales Sub-total $108,870 $107,967 $903


SW Site Generated Charge $6,986 $5,681 $1,305


HRM Fire Protection &


   Right of Way $10,000 $10,000 $0


Other Operating Revenue $2,928 $2,822 $106


Operating Revenue Total $128,784 $126,470 $2,314


Operating Revenue Results







ITEM # 4.1 
  HRWC Board 


March 26, 2020 
 


 


Page 6 of 8 


Operating revenue has increased $1.9 million as compared to the previous year.  Key items of note 


include:   


 Water and Wastewater consumption is up 0.4% on a volumetric basis as compared to the 


previous year. Consumption had been budgeted to remain consistent with the prior year 


but has increased slightly. February had an extra billing day as compared to prior year.  


 The Wastewater Rebate has decreased $0.4 million from the prior year due to a higher than 


anticipated rebate for NS Power in the prior year.  The Wastewater Rebate is an offset to 


revenue. It is available to certain large customers whose wastewater is a lower proportion of 


their consumed water.    


 Stormwater Site Generated Charge revenue is higher than the prior year. A large portion 


of Stormwater revenue is billed annually to Stormwater-only customers.  Previously this 


was done in March of each year, but invoicing began in January this year.  This will allow 


better management of customer inquiries about the invoices and enable payment and 


collection within the fiscal year.  


 Other Operating Revenue categories are down slightly as compared to budget and 


forecasted amounts.   


 


Operating Expenses 


 


   
 


Key items to note: 


 Operating expenses of $97.3 million are $3.3 million higher than the prior year and $4.7 


million below the eleven-month forecast for the year.   


 Compared to the prior year, expense categories with the largest increases in costs to date 


are Engineering and Information Systems (mostly related to Wastewater operations, page 


6 of attachment), Wastewater Treatment Plants, and Depreciation (mostly related to 


Wastewater assets, page 6 of attachment).   


 


Financial Revenue 
 


Key items to note: 


 Interest income is lower than the previous year despite higher than anticipated cash 


balances and rising interest rates. To align with the requirements of the Regional 


Actual YTD Prior YTD


2019/20 2018/19


'000 '000 $ Variance


Water Services $18,518 $18,767 ($249)


WW Services $30,628 $29,818 $810


SW Services $4,387 $4,349 $38


Engineering & IS $8,819 $7,358 $1,461


Regulatory Services $3,441 $2,898 $543


Corporate Services $10,046 $10,718 ($672)


Depreciation $21,453 $20,006 $1,447


Total Operating Expenses $97,292 $93,914 $3,378


Summary of Operating Expenses by Department


Actual YTD Forecast YTD


2019/20 2019/20


'000 '000 $ Variance


Water Services $18,518 $19,828 ($1,310)


WW Services $30,628 $30,699 ($71)


SW Services $4,387 $4,837 ($450)


Engineering & IS $8,819 $8,159 $660


Regulatory Services $3,441 $3,867 ($426)


Corporate Services $10,046 $11,660 ($1,614)


Depreciation $21,453 $22,923 ($1,470)


Total Operating Expenses $97,292 $101,973 ($4,681)


Summary of Operating Expenses by Department







ITEM # 4.1 
  HRWC Board 


March 26, 2020 
 


 


Page 7 of 8 


Development Charge (RDC) regulations, the portion of interest earned attributable to RDC 


funds is now allocated to those funds.  This results in lower interest income attributable to 


Water, Wastewater and Stormwater services of $0.6 million to date. 


 Miscellaneous revenue includes various un-regulated activities such as tower leases, 


energy generation, consulting activities and some contracted services.  


 


Financial Expenses 
 


Key items to note: 


 Long Term Debt principal and interest expenses are $2.2 million lower than in the prior 


year.   


 Debt servicing savings are a result of new debt issues having lower interest rates than older, 


maturing issues. For the previous three years debt repayments have been greater than new 


debt, however, new debt issued in November of $30.0 million exceeds the debt repayments 


of $18.2 million this fiscal year. 


 


Operating Results by Service - Pages 5-7 of attachment 
 


    
 


Regulated and Unregulated Operations - Page 8 of attachment 
 


 


    


Key items to note: 


 Two factors have contributed to the decline in the surplus for Unregulated Activities. One 


factor is a decline in revenue from Septage Tipping as former customers have been using 


other vendors. The other is a reduction in the allocation of revenue from regulated 


operations for the dewatering of biosolids to the unregulated dewatering facility at 


Aerotech. Aerotech was incurring costs associated with treating septage and a portion of 


2019/20 2018/19


'000 '000


Water $5,536 $3,447


Wastewater ($2,222) $671


Stormwater $783 ($46)


Surplus (Deficit) $4,097 $4,072


Year to Date Operating Results by Service


2019/20 2018/19


'000 '000


Regulated Activities ($7,594) ($4,254)


Unregulated Activities $607 $1,136


Surplus (Deficit) ($6,987) ($3,118)


Accrued Pension Expense $3,739 $2,425


Surplus (Deficit) ($3,248) ($693)


Results by Activity







ITEM # 4.1 
HRWC Board 


March 26, 2020 


Page 8 of 8 


the revenue had been allocated to offset these costs. Currently, most of the dewatering 


process is being handled within the other Halifax Water facilities and, as a result, the 


revenue allocation to Aerotech is reduced. 


Results under International Financial Reporting Standards - Pages 9 & 10 


As noted previously, the AcSB requires Halifax Water, as a rate regulated utility, to report financial 


results using IFRS.   


On the IFRS Balance Sheet, Accumulated Depreciation is higher producing a lower value for 


assets, Contributed Capital is treated as a long term liability and amortized rather than being treated 


as a contribution to equity, and the Operating Surplus is much higher due to changes in the Income 


Statement.   


On the IFRS Income Statement, revenue is the same.  Depreciation expense is higher as contributed 


assets are depreciated and some assets are depreciated more quickly.  Financial revenue is higher 


as the amortization of contributed capital is treated as revenue.  The most significant change is 


financial expenses are lower as there is no expense for the Long Term Debt Principal appropriation 


– a difference of $18.6 million for the full year.


The IFRS Surplus for the year to date is $11.6 million. 


ATTACHMENTS 


Unaudited Operating Results for the eleven (11) months ended February 29, 2020 


 Report prepared by: 


 Alicia Scallion, CPA, CA, Manager, Accounting, 902-490-4814 





				2020-03-20T11:49:42-0300

		Louis de Montbrun





				2020-03-19T20:05:49-0300

		Cathie O'Toole





				2020-03-19T16:35:36-0300

		Alicia Scallion












Appendix 1


HALIFAX REGIONAL WATER COMMISSION


BORROWING RESOLUTION


WHEREAS the Halifax Regional Water Commission (Halifax Water), is incorporated under the provisions of the Halifax Regional Water Commission Act, Ch. 55 of the Acts of 2007 (the “Act”);


AND WHEREAS the Act provides that Halifax Water has power to borrow such sums as may be authorized and approved by the Board of the Commission for the purposes of the Commission, subject to the approval of the Nova Scotia Utility and Review Board;


AND WHEREAS Halifax Water wishes to borrow $25,000,000 for the purpose of financing regular additions to utility plant in service for a 20 year amortization period; 

AND WHEREAS the Commission wishes to borrow $1,700,000 for the purpose of the refinancing of a balloon payment for the remaining 10 year amortization period;


AND WHEREAS a blanket guarantee for Halifax Water Debt was approved by the Halifax Regional Municipality on September 23, 2014; 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

1. Under the authority of Section 16 of the Act, Halifax Water borrow from the Municipal Finance Corporation, for the purpose set forth above, a sum or sums not exceeding $25,000,000 for a ten year term with a twenty-year amortization schedule and $1,700,000 for a ten year term with a ten-year amortization schedule at an all-inclusive rate not to exceed 5.5% percent;


2. The sum noted above be borrowed by the issue of debentures of Halifax Water to such an amount as Halifax Water deems necessary and that the debentures be arranged with the Nova Scotia Municipal Finance Corporation, with interest to be paid semi-annually and principal payments made annually; and 

3. This resolution remains in force for a period of not more than 12 months from the passing of this resolution.


I certify the above to be a true copy of a Resolution approved at a meeting of the Halifax Water Board of Directors held on March 26, 2020.







____________________________________








Heidi Schedler







Corporate Secretary and Legal Counsel

ITEM # 4.2


HRWC Board


March 26, 2020


ATTACHMENT 1











Halifax Water
Cash Flow Model for 2020-21


2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21
2020/21 2020/21 Adjustments 2020/21 Forecasted Forecasted Forecasted Forecasted Forecasted Forecasted Forecasted Forecasted Forecasted Forecasted Forecasted Forecasted Forecasted
Budget Forecast for Cash Flow Cash Flow Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Total


Operating Revenue 138,617,665  138,617,665  -  138,617,665    10,342,357  10,342,357  10,642,357  10,642,357  11,142,357  20,134,236  11,142,357  10,642,357  10,642,357  10,342,357  10,342,357   12,259,863  138,617,665  
Operating Expenses (100,884,123)  (100,884,123)   10,203,601  (90,680,522)  (7,340,044)   (8,640,044)     (7,340,044)     (7,340,044)     (7,340,044)     (7,340,044)     (8,640,044)     (7,340,044)     (7,340,044)     (7,340,044)     (7,340,044)   (7,340,044)     (90,680,522)  


Non Operating Revenue 618,861   618,861   -  618,861   51,572  51,572  51,572  51,572  51,572  51,572  51,572  51,572  51,572  51,572  51,572  51,572  618,861  
Non Operating Expenses (64,504,719)  (64,504,719)     29,820,511  (34,684,208)  (77,316)  (4,450,843)     (2,260,446)     (2,027,227)     (2,667)  (6,309,792)     (727,316)  (11,690,954)   (66,409)  (304,491)  (2,667)  (6,764,084)     (34,684,208)  


Operations Total (26,152,316)  (26,152,316)     40,024,112  13,871,796  2,976,569  (2,696,958)   1,093,439  1,326,658  3,851,218  6,535,972  1,826,569  (8,337,069)   3,287,476  2,749,394  3,051,218  (1,792,693)   13,871,796   


Capital Expenditures (incl CCC projects) (96,514,000)  (107,139,000)   -  (107,139,000)   (6,479,000)   (12,580,000)   (8,556,000)     (10,652,000)   (4,645,000)     (9,222,000)     (9,379,000)     (9,544,000)     (4,973,000)     (10,763,000)   (9,476,000)   (10,870,000)   (107,139,000)  
New Long Term Debt 58,730,000  26,700,000  (198,063)  26,501,937  -  -  26,501,937    -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -   -                      26,501,937   
Other Incoming Cash (Build Can, RDC, etc) 16,500,000  16,500,000  -  16,500,000  1,979,667  584,666  879,667  1,979,667  879,667  1,979,667  879,667  1,979,667  879,667  2,127,667  1,027,667  1,322,668  16,500,000   
Changes in working capital -  -  -  -  (1,950,000)   (804,999)  (450,000)  (700,000)  (250,000)  (150,000)  (100,000)  (100,000)  (100,000)  (100,000)  2,000,000  2,704,999  -   


Net Cash Flow (47,436,316)  (90,091,316)     39,826,049  (50,265,267)  (3,472,764)   (15,497,291)   19,469,043    (8,045,675)   (164,115)  (856,361)  (6,772,764)     (16,001,402)   (905,857)  (5,985,939)     (3,397,115)   (8,635,026)     (50,265,267)  


Opening Cash Balance 56,000,000  56,000,000  52,527,236  37,029,945  56,498,988  48,453,313  48,289,198  47,432,837  40,660,073  24,658,671  23,752,814  17,766,875   14,369,759  56,000,000   
Ending Cash Balance 5,734,733   52,527,236  37,029,945  56,498,988  48,453,313  48,289,198  47,432,837  40,660,073  24,658,671  23,752,814  17,766,875  14,369,759   5,734,733  5,734,733   


Notes
 - Adjustments for Cash Flow include removing the non cash portion of the Pension Expense, Depreciation, and Debt Discount
 - Debt principle and interest payments are included in the Non Operating Expenses category
 - Capital Expenditures includes the 2020-21 Capital Budget projects, projects carried over from 2019-20, and additional CCC project payments
 - The new Long Term Debt anticipated in this forecast is for $25.0m in new debt and a $1.7m balloon renewal
 - Other Incoming Cash includes $5.5 m in Build Canada and CWWF funding, and $11 million in RDC Collections


Opening Cash Balance highlighted in green
Closing Cash Balance highlighted in blue


 -


 10,000,000


 20,000,000


 30,000,000


 40,000,000


 50,000,000


 60,000,000


 Apr  May  Jun  Jul  Aug  Sep  Oct  Nov  Dec  Jan  Feb  Mar


2020-21 Monthly Cash Balance 
(projected)


https://insidehrwc.halifaxwater.ca/ou/corporateservices/accounting/Cash Flow/Cash Flow model - 2020-21 - operating original 3/16/2020


ITEM #4.2
HRWC Board


March 26, 2020
ATTACHMENT 2








 


ITEM # 4.2 
  HRWC Board 


March 26, 2020 


 


Page 1 of 3 


 


TO: Craig MacMullin, MBA, CPA, CGA, Chair, and Members of the 


Halifax Regional Water Commission Board 


 


SUBMITTED BY:  


Louis de Montbrun, CPA, CA, Director, Corporate Services/CFO 


   


APPROVED:              


   Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D, General Manager 


 


DATE:  March 16, 2020 


 


SUBJECT: 2020 Spring Debenture 


 


 


ORIGIN 


 


Halifax Regional Water Commission (Halifax Water) participation in the Spring 2020 


Municipal Finance Corporation (MFC) debenture issue to secure debt financing for 


2019/20 additions to utility plant in service.   


 


 


RECOMMENDATION 


 


It is recommended that the Halifax Water Board: 


 


1. Approve the financing of $25,000,000 for a ten year term with a twenty year 


amortization schedule and an all-inclusive rate not to exceed 5.5%.  


2. Approve the financing of $1,700,000 for a ten year term with a ten year 


amortization schedule and an all-inclusive rate not to exceed 5.5%.  


 


 


BACKGROUND 


 


Halifax Water is legally required to borrow through the MFC.  The borrowing proposed in 


this report is estimated based on the Five Year Business Plan, the approved Operating and 


Capital Budgets for 2019/20 and 2020/21, and the rate schedule approved by the Nova 


Scotia Utility and Review Board.  


 


 


 


 







ITEM # 4.2 
  HRWC Board  


March 26, 2020 
 


Page 2 of 3 


DISCUSSION 


 


Long term debt issued for capital projects is normally amortized for a period of twenty 


years based on the life of the assets being financed. Traditionally the market for twenty 


year financing in Canada has been more expensive than ten year financing so twenty year 


amortized debt is usually financed for ten years and the balloon payment refinanced for the 


remaining ten years.  Though a lower interest rate cost is secured for the first ten years, 


there is a risk that interest rates will be higher at the time the balloon payment is due for 


refinancing. 


 


The 2019/20 Capital and Operating Budgets were prepared based on funding that included 


$39.9 million of debt to finance water, wastewater and stormwater additions to utility plant 


in service.  Based on the timing of capital expenditures and cash flow projections, the full 


amount of the planned debt is not required; only $25.0 million in new debt will be issued 


at this time.   


 


An additional $48.5 million of debt is planned to fund the 2020/21 Capital Budget.  This 


is expected to be issued in either Fall 2020 or Spring 2021. The acquisition of debt 


following completion of capital projects aligns with the expectations of MFC. 


 


The $25.0 million will be applied to Water, Wastewater, and Stormwater as follows: 


Water $12.0 million 


Wastewater $7.4 million 


Stormwater $5.6 million 


 


In addition to the new debt required, a balloon payment is also due on an existing debt 


issue.  In 2010/11, new debt of $3.4 million was acquired to fund wastewater capital 


expenditures.  Debt was acquired for a ten year term with a twenty year amortization. A 


balloon payment of $1.7 million is due June 29, 2020, which will be refinanced for the 


remaining ten years. 


 


The new issue can be expected to have a lower interest rate than the original issue. The 


2010 Debenture had an interest rate of 3.70%.  Our current Weighted Average Cost of Debt 


is 3.22% and the Fall 2019 Debenture had an interest rate of 2.61%.   


 


The final interest rates and timing of the debt issues will not be known with certainty until 


the formal debenture process concludes.    


 


Halifax Water’s debt is covered by a blanket guarantee approved by Halifax Regional 


Municipality (HRM) Council in September 2014.  The blanket guarantee will apply to all 


Halifax Water debt with a condition that Halifax Water must maintain a debt service ratio 


of 35% or less.  Halifax Water’s debt service ratio is 18.46% as of February 29, 2020.  The 


debt service ratio is calculated as the cost of debt interest, principal and discount payments 







ITEM # 4.2 
HRWC Board 


March 26, 2020 


Page 3 of 3 


divided by the total Operating Revenue as found on the income statement (NSUARB 


format). 


Halifax Water’s outstanding debt at March 31, 2019 (including the current portion) was 


$208.3 million, and debt is projected to be $220.1 million at March 31, 2020.  


BUDGET IMPLICATIONS 


The 2020/21 budget includes $30.7 million in debt servicing.  Halifax Water’s capital 


financing strategy is designed to maintain a debt service ratio of 35% or less; and to use a 


mixture of infrastructure funding, development related charges (reserves), depreciation, 


and debt. 


ALTERNATIVES 


1. Halifax Water could choose to forgo participation in the 2020 Spring Debenture


and defer issuance of debt until fall 2020, however there is not sufficient cash


available for forecasted expenditures over this timeframe.


2. The full twenty year financing could be secured at a higher cost in the near term


to avoid the risk of higher interest rates when the debt is to be re-financed after


ten years.


ATTACHMENTS 


1. Borrowing Resolution for $25.0 million of new debt and $1.7 million for debt


renewal.


2. Cash Flow Model for 2020/21 based on approved Operating and Capital Budgets


and anticipated cash flow.


 Report prepared by: 


Alicia Scallion, CPA, CA, Manager, Accounting, 902-490-4814 





				2020-03-20T11:50:26-0300

		Louis de Montbrun





				2020-03-19T22:50:59-0300

		Cathie O'Toole





				2020-03-19T16:42:49-0300

		Alicia Scallion












Item 5-I
HRWC Board


March 26, 2020


APPENDIX AHalifax Regional Water Commission Employees' Pension Plan


Statement of changes in net assets available for benefits


For the twelve (12) month period ended December 31, 2019


2019 Actual Actual


Budget Actual $ % 2018 2017


Revenue


Net investment income:


Total investment income $2,530,000 $3,644,079 $1,114,079 44% $2,939,026 $2,622,024


Investment manager fees ($160,000) ($202,574) ($42,574) (27%) ($165,670) ($146,420)


Increase (decrease) in the fair value of investment assets $2,000,000 $10,335,745 $8,335,745 417% $1,763,098 $8,712,459


$4,370,000 $13,777,251 $9,407,251 215% $4,536,454 $11,188,063


Contributions


Participants:


Current service (including additional voluntary contributions) $3,028,000 $3,449,711 $421,711 14% $2,845,791 $2,665,078


Sponsor:


Current service $2,745,000 $2,955,895 $210,895 8% $2,578,842 $2,422,527


Unfunded liability $825,000 $0 ($825,000) (100%) $825,200 $825,200


$6,598,000 $6,405,606 ($192,394) (3%) $6,249,833 $5,912,805


Expenses
1


Benefit payments:


Benefit payments $3,959,000 $4,226,855 ($267,855) (7%) $3,848,218 $3,738,659


Termination payments $700,000 $960,187 ($260,187) (37%) $79,849 $314,591


Death benefit payments $0 $0 $0 n/a $0 $242,767


Administrative:


Actuarial & consulting fees $130,000 $120,416 $9,584 7% $50,409 $67,394


Audit & accounting fees $9,000 $8,320 $680 8% $8,441 $9,283


Bank custodian fees $25,000 $28,636 ($3,636) (15%) $32,303 $20,132


Insurance $9,000 $8,347 $653 7% $8,347 $8,347


Miscellaneous $15,000 $20,610 ($5,610) (37%) $16,195 $18,965


Professional fees $14,000 $23,261 ($9,261) (66%) $13,440 $14,623


Registration fees $3,000 $2,500 $500 17% $2,337 $2,221


Training (Trustees/ Administration/ Pension Committee) $1,000 $0 $1,000 100% $0 $0


$4,865,000 $5,399,131 ($534,131) (11%) $4,059,539 $4,436,982


Increase (decrease) in net assets available for benefits $6,103,000 $14,783,726 $8,680,726 142% $6,726,748 $12,663,886


Net assets available for benefits, beginning of period $122,964,705 $126,458,630 $119,731,882 $107,067,996


Increase (decrease) in net assets available for benefits $6,103,000 $14,783,726 $6,726,748 $12,663,886


Net assets available for benefits, end of period $129,067,705 $141,242,356 $126,458,630 $119,731,882


1 For the purposes of this statement, expenses are reported on a cash basis. Comparative years are reported on an accrual basis as that is how they are 


reported on the financial statements.


December 31, 2019


Variance


Actual versus Budget


Favourable (Unfavourable)


https://insidehrwc.halifaxwater.ca/ou/corporateservices/pension/Pension Plan Financial Statements PPFS/PPFS DB 2019.xlsx








Item 5-I
HRWC Board


March 26, 2020


APPENDIX BHalifax Regional Water Commission Employees' Pension Plan


Regulatory Filing Requirements - 2019


as at December 31, 2019


Report Regulatory Body Filing Deadline Date last filed Comments


1 Annual Form 3 - Summary of Contributions Superintendent of Pensions 60 days after the beginning of each fiscal year February 19, 2020 DB Plan Filed directly with the Trustee, Northern Trust, for the DB Plan.


February 18, 2020 DC Plan Filed directly with the Trustee, Industrial Alliance, for the DC Plan.


2 Pension Plan Income Tax Return (T3) Canada Revenue Agency March 31st March 13, 2020 DB Plan CRA requires Northern Trust as the custodian to prepare and file 


T3 Income Tax Returns each year. Information obtained from 


HRM Pension Plan quarterly report.


3 Pension Plan Audited Financial Statements Superintendent of Pensions 6 months after the Plan's fiscal year end June 25, 2019 DB Plan Audited financial statements were completed and approved by 


the HW Board on June 20th, 2019.


June 12, 2019 DC Plan Audited financial statements are not prepared for this pension 


plan. However, Industrial Alliance provides a Financial Report 


detailing all pertinant details of the plan. This report is submitted 


to the regulatory body prior to June 30th each year.


4 Annual Information Returns (AIR) Superintendent of Pensions June 30th June 12, 2019 DB Plan


June 12, 2019 DC Plan


5 Actuarial Valuation* Superintendent of Pensions September 30th September 27, 2019 Actuarial Valutaion was conducted as of January 1, 2019.


Canada Revenue Agency September 27, 2019


6 Plan Amendments Superintendent of Pensions 60 days after the amendment approved by the Board September 27, 2019 DB Plan


Canada Revenue Agency September 27, 2019


Superintendent of Pensions 60 days after the amendment approved by the Board n/a DC Plan


Canada Revenue Agency


*


** Notional Agreements were implemented during 2017 with an effective date for January 1, 2017. Notional Agreements are not registered therefore not subject to reporting requirements to a regulatory body. 


All documents relating to the registration of the DC Plan were 


received by the Superintendent October 6, 2017.


Amendment #12 approved by the Board June 20, 2019; 


Submitted to the Superintendent September 27, 2019. The 


amendment was persuant to the contribution rate change as 


dictated by the Actuarial Valuation of January 1, 2019.


Actuarial Valuations are required at a minimum every three (3) years.








Item 5-I
HRWC Board


March 26, 2020


APPENDIX CHalifax Regional Water Commission Employees' Pension Plan


Administrative Reporting Requirements - 2019


as at December 31, 2019


Report Filing Deadline/ Recurrance


Date last filed/ 


Performed Comments


1 Pensioners' Payroll Monthly March 1, 2020


Pensioners are paid the 1st of each month; no exceptions to report for the Fourth 


Quarter 2019.


2 Contributions to the Trustee Monthly March 11, 2020 DB Plan Remittances due to Northern Trust within 30 days of monthend; no exceptions to report 


for Fourth Quarter 2019.


January 15, 2020 DC Plan Remittances due to Industrial Alliance within 30 days of monthend; no exceptions to 


report for Fourth Quarter 2019.


n/a Notional Agreement*


3 Pension Plan Financial Statements Quarterly March 26, 2020 DB Plan Fourth Quarter (October - December 2019)


n/a DC Plan Quarterly statements are not prepared for the DC Plan. A financial report is prepared by 


Industrial Alliance and that report is filed with the AIR to the regulator.


n/a Notional Agreement* Financial statements not required.


4 Investment Performance Review & 


Compliance with SIP&P


Quarterly


January 30, 2020


DB Plan 3rd Quarter (July - September 2019)


Report prepared quarterly by administration staff for the HW Board of Directors, in 


conjunction with the quarterly HRM Pension Plan Committee meeting documentation. 


SIP&P is reviewed annualy and was last reviewed and approved on December 5, 2019.


5 Annual Pension Statements to Members June 30th June 18, 2019 DB Plan


June 18, 2019 DC Plan Statements issued annually in conjuction with the DB Plan statements, commencing in 


2018. Members also have access to online, real-time reporting.


June 18, 2019 Notional Agreement* Statements issued annually in conjuction with the DB Plan statements, commencing in 


2018.


6 Fiduciary Liability Insurance Annually November 13, 2019 DB Plan Reviewed and renewed annually by administration staff. The policy period expires 


November 30 each year. 


* Notional Agreements were implemented during 2017 with an effective date for January 1, 2017. Notional Agreements are not registered therefore not subject to reporting requirements to a regulatory body. 








Item 5-I
HRWC Board


March 26, 2020


APPENDIX DHalifax Regional Water Commission Employees' Pension Plan


Service Standards Report - 2019


Transaction


Total # 


Completed


# Past 


Standard


% with 


Standard


Average Service 


Days


Total # 


Completed


# Past 


Standard


% with 


Standard


Average Service 


Days


Total Average 


Service Days


Retirement Estimates 18 Business Days 1 0 100% 5.0 1 1 0% 27.0 32.0


Marriage Breakdown Calculations 28 Business Days 0 0 0.0


Post-Retirement Death Letter 10 Business Days 0 0 0.0


Pre-Retirement Death Benefit 28 Business Days 0 0 0.0


Termination Estimates/ Calculations


- Standard 18 Business Days 5 1 80% 8.0 5 5 0% 33.6 41.6


- Non Standard (incl RTAs) 28 Business Days 0 0 0.0


6 1 83% 6 6 0%


Combined Total (Eckler & Halifax Water)


Total # Completed # Past Standard % within Standard


6 6 0%


Quarter 4 (as at March 12, 2020) Eckler HW Staff


Standard


Total








 


ITEM # 7-I 
  HRWC Board 


March 26, 2020 
 


 


Page 1 of 3 


TO: Craig MacMullin, MBA, CPA, CGA, Chair, and Members of the 


Halifax Regional Water Commission Board 


 


 


SUBMITTED BY:  


   Louis de Montbrun, CPA, CA,  


Director, Corporate Services / CFO 


 


APPROVED:   


   Cathie O’Toole, MBA, CPA, CGA, ICD.D 


General Manager 


 


DATE:  March 13, 2020 


 


SUBJECT: Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees’ Pension Plan 


   Financial Report Fourth (4th) Quarter, 2019 


 


 


INFORMATION REPORT 


 


ORIGIN 


 


Financial reporting for the Halifax Regional Water Commission Employees’ Pension 


Plan (hereinafter called the “Plan”). 


 


 


BACKGROUND 


 


The Board is required to review the periodic (quarterly) financial results of the Plan 


throughout the year. 


 


 


DISCUSSION 


 


The attached statement of changes in net assets available for benefits (Appendix A) outlines 


the annual budget for the Plan and actual financial performance for the Fourth Quarter 


(January 1 to December 31, 2019). Favourable or unfavourable variances reported compare 


actual results to annual budget amounts, for the twelve (12) month period in 2019. Yearend 


audited results for 2017 and 2018 are shown for comparative purposes. 


 


As shown on the statement of changes in net assets available for benefits, net assets 


available for benefits have increased by $14.8 million for the twelve (12) month period 







ITEM # 7-I 
  HRWC Board 


March 26, 2020 


 


Page 2 of 3 


ending December 31, 2019. The annual budget for 2019 forecasted an increase in net assets 


available of $6.1 million. Actual results for the period of $14.8 million compared to the 


budget of $6.1 million results in a favourable variance in the amount of $8.7 million. 


 


The annual budget forecasted revenue of $4.4 million. Revenue for the period totaled $13.8 


million, which when compared to the budget of $4.4 million results in a favourable 


variance of $9.4 million. Revenue is affected largely by the performance of the HRM 


Master Trust, and change tends to be more volatile compared to contributions and expenses 


of the Plan. This variance is attributed directly to the fact the actual increase in the fair 


value of the investment assets was higher than expected. The increase for the period totaled 


$10.3 million compared to the budget of $2.0 million, a difference of $8.3 million or 417%. 


Investment income for the period performed above expectations, showing a favorable 


variance of $1.1 million or 44%. 


 


Contributions of $6.4 million are tracking lower than expected, down $0.2 million 


compared to the budget. This is attributed to the elimination of Plan Sponsor contributions 


associated with the unfunded liability, as described below. This reduction was partially 


offset by current service contributions for participants which showed an increase as a result 


of a reciprocal transfer of $0.4 million into the Plan during the year. An Actuarial Valuation 


was performed on the Plan as at January 1, 2019, which reported changes with respect to 


the funding policy for the Plan, effective January 1, 2019 as follows: 


 


 The combined current service rates increased slightly to 20.68% from 20.50%. 


Participants’ contributions in 2019 were 10.34% of pensionable earnings, which is 


matched by the Plan Sponsor. Prior to January 1, 2019 participants’ contributions 


were 10.65%, with the Plan sponsor matching up to 9.85%. 


 


 Required unfunded liability special payment of $0.8 million annually by the Plan 


Sponsor, identified in the January 1, 2016 Actuarial Valuation, are no longer 


required as a result of the Plan reporting an actuarial surplus on a going concern 


basis. This will remain in effect until the next scheduled actuarial valuation, January 


1, 2022. 


 


Expenses of $5.4 million for the period are higher than the annual budget of $4.9 million 


resulting in an unfavourable variance of $0.5 million or 11%. The main contributors to this 


unfavourable variance are benefit payments and termination payments, both of which are 


higher than the originally budgeted amounts.   


 


 


SERVICE STANDARDS 


 


Tracking of Regulatory Filing Requirements, Administrative Reporting Requirements and 


Service Standards for actuarial calculation requests is ongoing. The reports for Regulatory 


Filing Requirements and Administrative Reporting Requirements are attached as Appendix 







ITEM # 7-I 
HRWC Board 


March 26, 2020 


Page 3 of 3 


B and Appendix C respectively, and document administrative compliance within the 


various levels of reporting for the period.  


Service Standard results for the Fourth Quarter (October 1 to December 31st, 2019) have 


been attached as Appendix D. The intent of the service standards report is to set a standard 


number of days for which calculations can be provided to members when actuarial 


calculations are requested. The service standard includes both estimated number of days 


required by the current actuarial service provider, Eckler Partners Ltd., and estimated 


Halifax Water staff time. 


The overall results outlined for the Fourth Quarter as reported in Appendix D show, out of 


6 requests, none were delivered within the standard days proposed under the threshold 


limits. Response time of the actuary continues to improve compared to prior reports 


showing 5 of the 6 requests came in within the service standard. For the actuary, average 


service days for Retirement Estimates and Termination Estimates (standard) were 5 days 


and 8 days respectively. For the administrative staff, response time ranged from 13– 72 


days compared to the service standard of 7 days for the categories reported, with an average 


response time of 27 days for Retirement Estimates, and 34 days for Termination Estimates 


(standard). It is important to note that the urgency of requests is considered by 


administrative staff resulting in some requests being set aside while other tasks take 


priority.  


After reviewing results over the past 2 years, with regards to standards and administrative 


processes, changes will be implemented in 2020 to enhance service standard reporting 


considering types of requests and circumstances that may affect timing of responses. 


Discussions have already taken place with a focus on efficiency and process improvement. 


The response time from Eckler has shown great improvement over the last 8 months, 


showing their commitment to respond within the prescribed service standards set.  


ATTACHMENTS 


APPENDIX A – Financial Report: 


Statement of changes in net assets available for benefits, for the twelve 


(12) month period ended December 31, 2019. 


APPENDIX B – Regulatory Filing Requirements – 2019 


APPENDIX C – Administrative Reporting Requirements – 2019 


APPENDIX D – Service Standards Report – 2019 


Report Prepared by:    


Heather Britten, B.Comm, Quality Assurance Officer 902-490-1895 
(Signed by Allan Campbell on behalf of Heather Britten) 





				2020-03-20T11:55:07-0300

		Louis de Montbrun





				2020-03-19T19:56:42-0300

		Cathie O'Toole





				2020-03-19T13:20:30-0300

		Allan Campbell












Lake Major Dam Replacement - Total Project Cost Estimate February 11, 2020


Concept Design 


Concept Design Cost (MECO) (completed) $133,763.35 $133,763.35


Change Orders (MECO) (completed) $248,286.66 $242,548.00


Concept Design Sub-Total $382,050.01 $376,311.35


Detailed Design & Regulatory Approvals


Strum - Wetland Delineation (completed) $5,939.09 $5,939.09


Strum - Environmental Assessment (completed) $48,500.00 $48,500.00


Strum - Additional consulting for NSE regulatory approval $161,493.71 1


Envirosphere Consultants (completed) $22,133.92 $38,648.27


CRM Group (Archaeological) (completed) $40,000.00 $34,126.03


Clean Foundations (DFO Offset Assessment) (completed) $21,222.00 $21,222.00


MECO Detailed Design Services * $254,260.00 $281,952.00 2


MECO - Additional consulting tasks for NSE regulatory approval $153,861.60 3


Legal Fees & Private Property Compensation $41,612.27 4


Detailed Design & Regulatory Approvals Sub-Total $392,055.01 $787,354.97


Construction


MECO Tendering Services * $15,660.00 $15,660.00


Estimated Construction Cost (incl 25% contingency) $5,626,119.00


Tendered Construction Price $3,996,000.00 5a


Construction Change Orders $1,511,546.10 5b


Estimated vs Actual Unit Quantities Difference $293,015.90 5c


Materials Testing/ QA-QC for Dam Construction * $100,000.00 $20,448.80


Little Salmon River Monitoring During Construction (Envirosphere) * $20,000.00


DFO Offsetting (Method 1) * $240,775.00 $213,291.25


MECO Construction Phase Services * $291,060.00 $1,168,069.47 6


MECO Commissioning and Record Information * $35,621.00 $35,621.00


Strum - Construction Support $25,940.00 7


HRM Salmon River Bridge Study - Cost Share $13,307.00


MECO - Warranty Review/Deficiency Monitoring/NSE Approval Support (AL) $12,025.00


Construction Sub-Total $6,329,235.00 $7,304,924.52


Construction and Design Total $7,103,340.02 $8,468,590.84


(* Contingency on uncompleted work) (20%) $191,475.20 $0.00


Subtotal $7,294,815.22 $8,468,590.84


Net HST (4.286%) $312,655.78 $362,963.80


Sub Total $7,607,471.00 $8,831,554.64


Halifax Water Staff Time to date (2017) $54,797.72


HW Technical Services and Engineering $50,000.00


Halifax Water Costs (All Staff time/Overheads/Interest/Expenses) $196,933.38 8
Future Halifax Water Cost 2020/2021 (AL) $5,000.00


Sub Total $7,712,268.72 $9,033,488.02


Overhead/Interest (1%) $77,122.69 $83,738.27


Total Estimated Cost $7,789,391.41 $9,117,226.29


Additional amount of funding required $1,327,834.89


$1,330,000.00 Rounded


CWWF Funding Amount $3,388,287.00


Budget Amount


Funding approved by HRWC Board - March 27, 2014 200,000.00$         


Funding Approved by NSUARB - July 27 2015 400,000.00$         


HRWC 2016/17 Capital Budget - Lake Major Dam Replacement 100,000.00$         


HRWC 2017/18 Capital Budget - Lake Major Dam Replacement 3,701,104.00$      


Total 4,401,104.00$      


Total Project Cost vs Halifax Water Capital Budgets $5,728,939.29


Additional amount of funding required (Rounded Total) $1,330,000.00


Description NSUARB Approval Amount Final Project Cost Note


ITEM # 5.1
HRWC BOARD
March 26, 2020


ATTACHMENT 1








Nova Scotia Utility and Review Board
Mailing address 


PO Box 1692, Unit "M" 
Halifax, Nova Scotia 
B3J 3S3


board@novascotia.ca
http://nsuarb.novascotia.ca


Office


3rd Floor, 1601 Lower Water Street 
Halifax, Nova Scotia B3J 3P6 


1 855 442-4448 (toll-free)
902 424-4448 t 
902 424-3919 f


April 10, 2017


carl.vates@halifaxwater.ca


Carl Yates, M.A.Sc., P.Eng.
General Manager
Halifax Regional Water Commission 
450 Cowie Hill Road 
Halifax, NS B3M 5M1


Dear Mr. Yates:


M07869 - Halifax Regional Water Commission - Lake Major Dam Replacement- W-HRWC- 
E-17


The Board has reviewed Halifax Regional Water Commission (“HRWC”)’s request, dated February 
8, 2017, for approval of funding for the Lake Major Dam Replacement project at an estimated 
gross total cost of $7,789,391. Attached to the February 8, 2016, HRWC letter was a copy of a 
cost estimate for the project and an excerpt from a project concept design report prepared by 
HRWC’s consultants, MECO.


The project is one of five HRWC projects which has received funding from the Federal/Provincial 
Clean Water and Wastewater Fund (CWWF) Program. A condition of CWWF approval is that all 
eligible costs must be incurred (i.e. substantial project completion) by March 31, 2018. If the 
project is not completed by that date, the CWWF funding is prorated based upon completed work.


The HRWC letter explains that a 2012 Dam Safety Review identified several problems with the 
Lake Major Dam. The project scope involves the replacement of the existing dam with a new 
reinforced concrete dam structure. The project’s original concept involved a standard Ogee style 
overflow spillway design. However, upon further review it was decided to proceed with a hybrid 
design, which involves both spillway and sluice gates that will provide greater operability over the 
range of watershed/flow conditions. This resulted in an increase to the project’s original cost 
estimate, which was not reflected in the application for funding under the CWWF program.


Board staff requested additional information (IRs) on February 23, 2017, March 9, 2017, and 
March 24, 2017, to which responses were received on March 8, 2017, March 21,2017, and March 
30, 2017, respectively.


The CWWF provides funding for 75% of all eligible project costs. The Lake Major Dam 
Replacement project’s eligible costs for CWWF funding at the time of application approval were 
$4,517,716, with 75% funding provided in the amount of $3,388,287. Funding for the project in the 
amount of $200,000 was approved by the HRWC Board on March 27, 2014. In a letter dated July 
27, 2015, the Board approved funding for the design phase of the project in the amount of 
$400,000. This $600,000 is included in the total project cost of $7,789,391.


Document: 254066


ITEM # 5.1 
HRWC Board


March 26, 2020
Attachment 2



mailto:board@novascotia.ca

http://nsuarb.novascotia.ca

mailto:carl.vates@halifaxwater.ca





-2-


The current request is for additional project funding in the amount of $7,189,391, consisting of 
funding from CWWF ($3,388,287), with the remainder ($3,801,107) funded by HRWC as follows:


Based upon the information provided, the Board approves the above noted request for additional 
project funding of $7,189,391 and the source of funding, as outlined above. When available, 
please provide the Board with the final tender price (i.e. a copy of the completed Form of Tender), 
as submitted by the lowest compliant bidder.


The Board also notes that for future external funding applications, HRWC should use construction 
cost estimates which are reflective of the most current design concept and status of design.


The Board is to be advised of any significant changes to the project’s costs (both from lower and 
higher than expected tender pricing) and resulting updated funding requirements prior to the start 
of the project’s construction. The Board is also to be notified if the CWWF program provides a 
project schedule extension.


Yours very truly,


Total


HRWC 2016/17 Capital Budget -Lake Major Dam Replacement 


HRWC 2017/18 Capital Budget - Lake Major Dam Replacement


$ 100,000 


$3,701104


$3,801,000


^teven Mr Murphy, MBA, P. Eng. 
Member


Document: 254066












ITEM # 5.1 
HRWC Board 


March 26, 2020 


Page 1 of 4 


TO: Craig MacMullin, MBA, CPA, CGA, Chair, and Members of the 


Halifax Regional Water Commission Board 


SUBMITTED BY: 


Jamie Hannam, P.Eng.,  


Director, Engineering & Information Services 


APPROVED: 


Cathie O’Toole, MBA, FCPA, FCGA, ICD.D, General Manager 


DATE: March 10, 2020 


SUBJECT: Lake Major Dam Replacement – Additional Funding 


ORIGIN 


The 2016/17 and the 2017/18 Capital Budgets 


RECOMMENDATION 


The Halifax Regional Water Commission Board approve $1,330,000 in additional funding 


for the Lake Major Dam Replacement Project for a total estimated project cost of 


approximately $9,120,000. 


BACKGROUND 


On April 10, 2017, the Nova Scotia Utility and Review Board approved the Lake Major 


Dam replacement project with an estimated gross total cost of $7,789,391. The project was 


successful in obtaining funding under the CWWF program from federal and provincial 


partners in the amount of $3,388,287. Halifax Water obtained capital funding through four 


separate requests to the Halifax Regional Water Commission Board and NSUARB as 


outlined on the attached total project cost estimate. The total net approved funding from 


Halifax Water was $4,401,104.  







ITEM # 5.1 
HRWC Board 


March 26, 2020 


Page 2 of 4 


DISCUSSION 


Project Timeline: 


Concept design for the Lake Major Dam replacement started in September 2014 with a 


summary report finalized in July 2016. The Concept Design explored design options and 


suitable locations for the replacement structure.   


During the concept design process, a project approval application was filed with 


Department of Fisheries and Oceans (DFO) on December 15, 2015. The application was 


filed to start negotiations with DFO and Nova Scotia Environment (NSE) on environmental 


flow requirements to start the detailed design of the fish ladder and sluice gate structures. 


The DFO application involved further study and evaluation of low flows on aquatic habitat 


in the Little Salmon River. On a parallel path, a preliminary application for project approval 


was submitted to NSE on December 15, 2015. This application was to determine additional 


information NSE required to approve the project. Halifax Water was advised by NSE, on 


July 6, 2016, that the application required an Environmental Assessment. The 


Environmental Assessment process was started immediately and completed by February 9, 


2017. 


Detailed design started in September 2016 after the decision was made to proceed with a 


labyrinth concrete spillway option. Detailed design was completed in March 2017. The 


project was issued for public tender on April 14, 2017 and closed on May 16, 2017. 


Construction approval from NSE was not received until May 28, 2018 and construction 


started shortly thereafter.  


During construction, approval from NSE was obtained to work on the project through the 


Winter 2018 into Spring 2019. The contractor obtained substantial completion of the work 


on October 1, 2019. The project is currently in the warranty period with minor deficiencies 


to complete onsite when weather permits.  


Project Outcome: 


The Lake Major dam replacement project met the required project deliverables following 


key objectives of Halifax Water’s Dam Management Program: 


1. Replacement of the existing timber dam asset that was at the end of its


useful service life and a risk to public safety.


2. The replacement structure includes a passively designed labyrinth spillway


which reduces the operating costs of the structure over its service life.


3. The replacement structure increased water storage in Lake Major which will


add resiliency to the water supply and help offset periods of reduced rainfall.







ITEM # 5.1 
HRWC Board 


March 26, 2020 


Page 3 of 4 


4. A new fish ladder was included in the replacement dam which provides a


long-term solution to fish passage and eliminates the need to continue the


solution that was developed to pump fish over the old structure.


Project Costs: 


The project incurred additional cost that exceeded the original funding allotment in the 


amount of $1,330,000 (rounded total). There are several factors which attributed to the 


project requiring additional funding which include: 


1. Original NSUARB submission included a concept cost estimate for a concrete dam


with Ogee spillway and gates. Early in the detailed design process, the dam was


redesigned to be a labyrinth spillway with sluicegates to be a more passively


operated structure. This resulted in additional design fees and a higher capital cost


than previously estimated.


2. The dam replacement project had an extensive Nova Scotia Environment and


Department of Fisheries regulatory review process, which included an


Environmental Assessment, Wetland Delineation, Wetted Perimeter study for Little


Salmon River, and development of an Environmental Protection Plan. The


construction approval from Nova Scotia Environment involved multiple


submissions of requested information from the consulting team before receiving


approval on May 28, 2018. Best efforts with NSE were made to determine the scope


of regulatory approvals during the concept design stage, but the larger scope of this


process evolved after the project cost estimate was submitted to NSUARB.


3. The initial requirement of the Federal/Provincial CWWF funding approval for the


project included a substantial completion date of March 31, 2018. To meet this


deadline, the construction contract portion of the project was publicly tendered and


closed on May 16, 2017. The Environmental Assessment approval was received


from Nova Scotia Environment on February 9, 2017. It was anticipated that


construction approval would follow within a reasonable time after this approval.


Construction Approval was not received from Nova Scotia Environment until May


28, 2018, and construction started shortly after. This 15-month delay resulted in a


negotiated change order with the General Contractor, which increased the contract


price by $299,700.


4. The earth embankment saddle dyke was tendered to be constructed ‘in the wet’


consistent with best practice construction methods and appropriate erosion and


sedimentation controls. In the construction approval, Nova Scotia Environment


applied a condition to the project that the saddle dyke must be constructed ‘in the


dry’, which resulted in a change order for the Contractor to construct a cofferdam


and dewater the saddle dyke area for this phase of the project. This resulted in a


change order with the General Contractor that increased the contract price by


$372,000.







ITEM # 5.1 
HRWC Board 


March 26, 2020 


Page 4 of 4 


Report Prepared By:   


Tom Gorman, P. Eng, Manager Water Infrastructure, 


Engineering & IS Department, 902-490-4176 


Financial Approved by:  


Allan Campbell, B. Comm, CPA, CMA, Manager, Finance 


902-266-8655 


5. During Phase 1 construction the General Contractor encountered an unforeseen


condition in the lake bed which caused additional infiltration into the cofferdam


work area. This resulted in the General Contractor requiring additional pumping to


dewater the work area and project delays. This resulted in a negotiated change order


with the General Contractor that increased the contract price by $545,913.


6. The fee for engineering consultant construction services was over the budgeted


amount. The original estimate at the detailed design stage for construction duration


provided by the consultant was 6 months. The project took 18 months to fully


construct and commission.


BUDGET IMPLICATIONS 


The required funding of $1,330,000 is available in unused funds in the Capital Budget 


under the heading 3.465 JD-Kline Low Lift Pump Replacements (2019/20 Capital Budget 


- $1,000,000 and 20/21 Capital Budget - $330,000).  


This project was initially scoped as a major upgrade of the JD Kline Low Lift Pumping 


and power supply systems.  Work on the project had been paused until the Plant 


Optimization study had an opportunity to assess the overall Low Lift Station.  Based on 


Plant Operations’ input, the current immediate need is for a straight replacement of Pump 


# 3 which has failed.  Staff is proceeding with the reduced scope of work (replacement of 


Pump #3).  This straight replacement allows for the deferral of costs and decisions on major 


upgrades pending the findings and recommendations of the Optimization Study.    


Therefore, unused funding in the amount of $1,330,000 is available for reallocation 


ALTERNATIVES 


None 


ATTACHMENTS 


Attachment 1: Halifax Water – Lake Major Dam Replacement – Total Project Cost 


Estimate – February 11, 2020 


Original Signed By:





				2020-03-20T12:41:45-0300

		Jamie Hannam





				2020-03-20T10:48:05-0300

		Cathie O'Toole





				2020-03-20T11:57:51-0300

		Louis de Montbrun












Caledonia Road/Port Wallace 
Transmission Main Site Plan ¯ 0 440220


Meters


MAIN ST


C
A


L
E


D
O


N
IA


 R
D


FOREST HILLS EXT


BREEZE DR


TACOMA DR


AV
E


N
U


E
 D


U
 P


O
R


TA
G


E


1:15,000
Scale


Tie-In


Tie-In


Transmission 
Main Alignment (750 mm Φ)


Tacoma 
PRV Chamber


Halifax Water Owned Land


Lake Lamont Emergency
Supply Station


ITEM # 5.2
HRWC Board


March 26, 2020
ATTACHMENT 1





